GREENEUVEL

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS OF
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“THE DEMERGED COMPANY?”)

[pursuant to Order dated February 25, 2025 passed by
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (‘NCLT’)]

Day Tuesday

Date April 08, 2025

Time 02:30 P.M.

Venue Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050

Mode of meeting Video conferencing / other audio visual means with facility of remote e-

voting

Remote e-voting start date | Saturday, April 05, 2025 at 09:00 A.M.

and time

Remote e-voting end date | Monday, April 07, 2025 at 05:00 P.M.

and time

S.NO. Particulars

1. Notice of meeting of the Secured Creditors of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
being convened by order of the NCLT dated February 25, 2025 under the provisions of
Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

2. Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3) read with Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

3. Annexure A
Form of Proxy

4. Annexure B
Attendance sheet

5. Annexure Cto E
Format of Board Resolution/ Authorization letter for Authorised representative

6. Annexure F
Route Map

7. Annexure 1
Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or
Demerged Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or
“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders.

8. Annexure 2
Independent Valuation Report dated October 15, 2024, issued by Hitesh Jhamb, Registered
Valuer.

9. Annexure 3
Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited in
its meeting held on October 16, 2024 pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

10. Annexure 4
Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited
in its meeting held on October 16, 2024 pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

11. Annexure S
Audited Financial Statements of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited as on March
31,2024.
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12. Annexure 6

Audited Financial Statements of Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited as on March
31,2024

13 Annexure 7

Unaudited Provisional Statements of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited as on
September 30,2024,

14 Annexure 8

Unaudited Provisional Statements of Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited as on
September 30,2024,
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHANDIGARH BENCH
CA (CAA) No.8/CHD/HRY/2025

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(“GESPL” or “Demerged Company”’) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited
(“GBSPL” or “Resulting Company”)

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
[CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098] is a Private

Limited Company incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956 having its registered

office at Plot No.62/4, IMT, Manesar,

Gurgaon, Haryana- 122050.

Applicant Company No.1/ Demerged Company

FORM NO. CAA.2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) and Rule 6 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS
OF GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

To,
All the Secured of GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“Company”)

NOTICE is hereby given that by an Order dated February 25, 2025 (“Order”), the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench at (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”) in the above mentioned
Company Scheme Application has directed Meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Company, to be
convened and held for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without
modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(“GESPL” or Demerged Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or
“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“the Scheme” / “Scheme of
Arrangement”), pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, Notice is hereby given that Meeting of the
Secured of the Company is scheduled to be held at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana-
122050, on April 08, 2025, at 02:30 p.m. (IST) (“Meeting”) through video conferencing / other audio
visual means. The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on October 16, 2024,
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approved the above-mentioned Scheme, subject to the sanction of the Hon’ble NCLT and of such other
authorities as may be necessary.

Foiap,

The Secured Creditors are requested to consider and, if thought fit, approve with or without
modification(s), the following resolution pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act
and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force) and the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, the Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 and other Rules, Circulars and Notifications made thereunder, as may be
applicable and relevant provisions of other applicable laws, the relevant provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, subject to requisite approval
of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”/ “Tribunal”), and other regulatory or
government bodies/ tribunals or institutions as may be applicable, and subject to such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Tribunal or by any regulatory or other
authorities, while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the (“Board”), which term shall be
deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/ to be constituted by the Board or
any other person authorised by it to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
Resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy
Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or Demerged Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions
Private Limited (“GBSPL” or “Resulting Company ) and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”
/ “Scheme of Arrangement”) placed before this Meeting, be and is hereby approved by Secured
Creditors of the Company with or without modification(s) and for conditions, if any, which may be
required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the Chandigarh Bench of the Hon’ble NCLT while
sanctioning the aforesaid Scheme and/or by any Governmental Authority.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution and for removal
of any difficulties or doubts the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to
give effect to this resolution and the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to accept such
modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or
imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT and/or other authorities while sanctioning the merger embodied in the
Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any
questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or
making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the
Scheme, including settling of any questions or difficulties arising under the Scheme or in regard to and
of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or implementation thereof or in any matter whatsoever
connected therewith, and if necessary, to waive any of those, and to all acts, deeds and things as may
be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into the effect or to carry out such
modifications/directions as may be required and/or imposed and/or permitted by the Tribunal while
sanctioning the Scheme, or by any other Authorities, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Secured creditors shall have the facility and option of voting on
the resolution for approval of the Scheme by casting their votes (a) through remote e-voting system
available at the Meeting to be held on the registered office of the company during the period as stated
below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD
Commencement of voting Saturday, April 05, 2025 at 09:00 A.M.
End of voting Monday, April 07, 2025 at 05:00 P.M.
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The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as the
agency to provide e-voting and other facilities for the Meeting.

A Copy of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230(3), and 102 of the Act,
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016,
along with the Annexures as indicated in the Index, can be obtained free of charge from the Registered
Office of the Company at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050, during normal
business hours (9:30 am to 6:00 pm) from Monday to Friday upto and including the date fixed for the
Meeting.

The Persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting of the Secured Creditors as on April 08, 2025,
may vote in person or through authorised representative or through Proxy, provided that all proxies in
the Form MGT-11, are deposited at the registered office of the Company at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar,
Gurgaon Haryana- 122050 not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of
the meeting. Forms of proxy and the attendance slip are enclosed herewith and the same can be obtained
free of charge at the registered office of the Company,

The Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Justice (Retd.) Ms. Ritu Tagore to be the Chairperson of the said
Meeting and failing her, Advocate Krishna Anmol Singh, as the Alternate Chairperson of the Meeting,
including for any adjournment or adjournment(s) thereof. The Hon’ble NCLT has also appointed Mr.
Vivek Goyal, Chartered Accountant, as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting, including for any adjournment
or adjournment(s) thereof.

The Notice and Explanatory Statement is also uploaded on the website of the Company at
https://greenfuelenergy.in/ The Secured Creditors may refer to the notes to this notice for further details
for voting at such meeting.

The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of NCLT.

072 ol
Ritu Tagore
Justice (Retd.)
Chairman appointed for the meeting
Dated: March 07, 2025
Place:
Registered Office: Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050

NOTES:

1. An explanatory statement of material facts for the proposed Resolution along with applicable
annexures pursuant to section 230 and section 232 read with section 102 of the Companies Act
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “Act”) along with applicable rules thereunder setting out material
facts forms part of this Notice booklet annexed hereto.

2. An Secured Creditor entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy so appointed need not be a
Secured creditor of the Company. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the
registered office of the Company at Plot No. 62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana, India,
122050, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of meeting. A
blank form of proxy is enclosed along with the notice of this meeting in Annexure A. All alterations
made in the form of proxy should be initialed.
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The proxy(ies) will not be counted for the calculation of the quorum for the meeting.

Creditors/Proxies for Creditors/ Authorised Representative should bring the Attendance Slip duly
filled in for attending the meeting. The same is enclosed herewith as Annexure B.

Corporate Creditors/Entities intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the
Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the registered
office of the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution (in case of
Company/LLP)/ Letter of Authorization (in case of partnership firm and others), as the case may
be, together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing the representative(s) to attend
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting, not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the
commencement of meeting. The Performa board resolution/ Letter of Authorization has been
enclosed herewith as Annexure C — E.

For ease of conduct of Meeting, Secured Creditors who wish to ask to questions / express their
views on the proposed Scheme are requested to write to the Company’s email-id
accounts@greenfuelenergy.in, at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting by
mentioning their name, registered email ID, mobile number, etc. The queries may be raised
precisely and in brief with respect to the proposed Scheme, to enable the Company to answer the
same suitably depending on the availability of time at the Meeting.

The Notice convening the aforesaid Tribunal Convened Meeting will be published through
advertisement in “Business Standard” (English, Gurgaon, and Haryana Edition) in English
language and “Jansatta” (Hindi, Gurgaon, and Haryana Edition), in Hindi language.

The Company is offering facility for voting by way of remote e-voting at the meeting for the
Secured Creditors attending the meeting.

The route map for reaching the venue of the meeting of Secured Creditors is provided as Annexure-
F.

Procedure for ‘Remote E-Voting’ & E-Voting at the meeting.

Kindly follow the instructions for secured creditors Remote voting electronically provided as
under.
i. The voting period begins on April 05, 2025 from 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends on April
07, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The e-voting module shall be disabled for voting
thereafter.
ii. Voters should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting
period.
iii. Click on Shareholders/ Members.
iv. Enter your User ID as XXXXXXXXXX
v. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
vi. Enter your password as XXXXXXXX
vii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
viii.Select the EVSN of <<Company name as registered in the e-Voting system
ix. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.
X. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.
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xi. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

xii. Once you “CONFIRM?” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

xiii. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to
print” option on the Voting page.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SECURED CREDITORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

L.

12.

Secured Creditors will be provided with a facility to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM
through the CDSL e-Voting system. Members may access the same using Remote voting
credential & process mentioned above. The link for VC/OAVM will be available after
successful login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.

Secured Creditors are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / [Pads for better
experience.

Further Secured Creditors will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Secured Creditors who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 2 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, membered , email id, mobile number at (company email id).
The Secured Creditors who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send
their queries in advance2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, member id, mobile
number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by
email.

Those Secured Creditors who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

INFORMATION AND INSTRUCTIONS RELATING TO E-VOTING

An secured creditor who has cast his/her/its vote(s) by remote e-voting may also attend the
Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast his/her/its vote(s) again at the Meeting.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by an secured creditor, the secured creditor shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

An secured creditor can opt for only single mode of voting, i.e., through remote e-voting or
voting at the Meeting. If an secured creditor casts vote(s) by both modes, then voting done
through remote e-voting shall prevail and vote(s) cast at the Meeting shall be treated as
“INVALID”
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4. A person whose name is recorded in the list of the secured creditors of the Company as on the
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or for participation at
the Meeting and voting through Remote E-vote.

5. The Company has opted to provide the same electronic voting system at the Meeting, as used
during remote e-voting, and the said facility shall be operational till the resolution proposed in
the Notice is considered and voted upon at the Meeting and may be used for voting only by the
secured creditors as on the cut-off date who are attending the Meeting and who have not already
cast their vote(s) through remote e-voting.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHANDIGARH BENCH
CA (CAA) No.8/CHD/HRY/2025

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(“GESPL” or Demerged Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited
(“GBSPL” or “Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and Creditors (“the Scheme”
/ “Scheme of Arrangement”)

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
[CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098] is a Private

Limited Company incorporated under the

Companies Act, 1956 Having its registered

office at Plot No.62/4, IMT, Manesar,

Gurgaon, Haryana- 122050

...Applicant Company No.1/Demerged Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE NOTICE OF THE
TRIBUNAL CONVENED MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF GREENFUEL
ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED.

1. Pursuant to the Order dated February 25, 2025 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”), in Company Scheme Application No.
CA (CAA) No.8/Chd/Hry/2025 (“Order”), the Meeting of the Secured Creditors of the
Company is being convened at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122050 on
April 08, 2025 at 02:30 p.m. (IST) through video conferencing / other audio visual means for
the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the
Scheme of Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or
Demerged Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or
“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders and Creditors (“the Scheme” /
“Scheme of Arrangement”) pursuant to provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”) and rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force). GESPL and GBSPL are together referred to
as the (“Companies”). A copy of the Scheme, which has been, inter alia, approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on October 16, 2024, is enclosed herewith as
Annexure 1. Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to
them in the Scheme, unless otherwise stated.

2. In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the aforesaid Meeting of the Secured Creditors of
the Company shall be 2 in number or 51% in value of the Secured Creditors. Further in terms
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of the said Order, NCLT has appointed Justice (Retd.) Ms Ritu Tagore to be the Chairperson of
the said Meeting and failing her, Advocate Krishna Anmol Singh, appointed as an alternate
Chairperson of the Meeting including for any adjournment or adjournment(s) thereof.

3. This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3) and 102 of the Act, read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

4. The Scrutiniser appointed for conducting the voting process will submit their separate report to
the Chairperson appointed for the Meeting after completion of the scrutiny of voting so as to
announce the results of the voting exercised by the Secured Creditors of the Company.

5. In terms of the Order dated February 25, 2025 passed by the Tribunal, in Company Scheme
Application No. CA (CAA) No.8/CHD/HRY/2025, if the entries in the books/ register of the
Company in relation to the number or value, as the case may be, of the Secured Creditors are
disputed, the Chairperson of the Meeting determined the 2 in number or 51% in value of the
Secured Creditors, as the case may be, for the purposes of the said Meeting and his decision in
that behalf would be final.

6. The draft Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of the First Applicant Company at
their respective meetings held on October 16, 2024. The Scheme was approved by the Board
of Directors of the respective Companies, inter-alia taking into account the following;

a) Draft Scheme of Arrangement;

b) Valuation Reports dated October 15, 2024, issued by Hitesh Jhamb, Registered Valuer,
Registered Valuer;

c) Certificate dated October 21, 2024 issued by the Statutory Auditors of the Company
i.e. Sanjesh Jawarni & Co. to the effect that the Scheme is in compliance with the
applicable Accounting Standards as specified by the Central Government under Section
133 of the Act;

7. Board of Directors of GESPL and GBSPL has also concluded that the Scheme is in the interest
of the Companies and their shareholders respectively.

PARTICULARS OF GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“GESPL”)

8. Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or “Demerged Company”) having CIN:
U40107HR2006PTC056098 and PAN: AACCG6903F, is a private limited company
incorporated on October 31, 2006 under the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the
GESPL is at Plot No. 62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122050. E-mail address of GESPL
is accounts@greenfuelenergy.in. There has been no change in the name and the objects of the
GESPL in the last 5 (five) years except change in Registered Office from Delhi to Haryana vide
RD NR order dated 08/06/2015.

9. The objects for which GESPL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of
Association. The main objects of GESPL are, inter alia, as follows:

I (A) THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE:-

1. To Import, export, buy package, manufacture and sell products for alternate fuel systems and
alternate energy systems.

2. To provide alternate energy solutions by acting as consultants and representatives of various
manufactures and to obtain and execute orders for various technologies and products in the
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field of alternate energy, Including CNG, hydrogen, LPG, wind power hydro power and solar
energy.

10. The authorised, issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as at
31st March, 2024 is as under:

Particulars | Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized

2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each | - [ 25,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each : | 15,00,000/-
Total paid up capital : | 15,00,000/-

Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company, the Subscribed and Paid-Up capital has been modified
on account of Buy-Back undertaken in pursuance to the provisions of Section 68 of the 2013
Act. The new Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up Share Capital of the Demerged Company as on
30™ September, 2024 is as under:

Particulars | Amount (in Rs.)
Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,45,844 Equity Shares of | : | 14,58,440/-

Rs.10/- each

PARTICULARS OF GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“GBSPL”)

11. Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or “Resulting Company”’) having CIN:
U31109HR2022PTC102300 and PAN: AAJCG6591L, is a private limited company
incorporated on March 25, 2022, under Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of GBSPL
is at Plot No.62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122051. GBSPL is engaged in the business
of design, develop, manufacture, and assemble, buy, sell, import, export, distribute, and deal in
batteries of all kinds and descriptions for automotive and others. E-mail address of GBSPL is
accounts@greenfuelenergy.in. There has been no change in the registered office and the objects
of the GESPL in the last 5 (five) years except change of name from Greenfuel Ahamani Battery
Private Limited to Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited vide fresh COI dated
01/07/2024.

12. The objects for which GBSPL has been established are set out in its Memorandum of
Association. The main objects of GBSPL are, inter alia, as follows:
IIl (A) THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION
ARE:-

1. To carry on in India and abroad the business of design, develop, manufacture, and
assemble, buy, sell, import, export, distribute, and deal in batteries of all kinds and
descriptions for automotive and others including Battery chargers, SMPS Chargers,
Battery backup devices, Solar Batteries, Tubular Batteries, BMS (Battery Management
System) and various batteries of all description and all components, parts, accessories,
articles and fittings required for that purpose.
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13. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the GBSPL as at 31st March,

2024 is as under:
Particulars | Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each | : ] 5,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each : | 5,00,000/-
Total paid up capital : | 5,00,000/-

14. RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Demerged Company has two distinct business divisions i.e. Manufacturing of advanced
CNG Pipes & Energy Storage Systems Division which include E-mobility division. The CNG
pipes Division is hereinafter referred to as “Remaining Division” or “Remaining Business”
or “Remaining Undertaking” (as defined herein below) and energy storage system business
and E-mobility Division is hereinafter referred to as “Demerged Division” or “Demerged
Business” or “Demerged Undertaking” (as defined herein below) and the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company has decided to demerge the energy storage system
business and E-mobility Division into the Resultant Company to inter-alia include the
following benefits:-

(i)  The nature of risk, competition, challenge, opportunities, and business methods for
the Manufacturing of advanced CNG Pipes & Energy Storage Systems Division are
distinctive and different from the Demerged Undertaking/ Demerged Business carried
out by the Demerged Company. Further, the way energy storage system business and
E-mobility Division is required to be handled and managed separately, as it is not
similar to that of the Remaining Business.

(i)  The Demerged Business existing carried out by the Demerged Company has
significant potential for growth and profitability and can attract different set of
investors, strategic partners, lenders, etc. Therefore, as the demerged business
approaches its next phase of growth, it would be strategically apt to segregate the
demerged undertaking from the demerged company.

(iii))  The segregation shall enable the Demerged Company and the Resultant Company to
move forward independently, with greater focus and specialization, building on their
respective capabilities and their strong brand presence. It will also help to channelize
resources required for all the businesses to focus on the growing business and attract
the right talent and provide enhanced growth opportunities.

(iv)  The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and the Resultant Company to
focus on and enhance their respective business by streamlining operations and their
management structure ensuring better and efficient management control.

(v)  Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking value of each business and
thereby paving way for focused growth with a view to create significant stakeholder
value.

(vi)  In order to strengthen and sustain the long-term profitability, market share, customer
service and face the competitive regulatory environment, risks and policies, the
Demerged Undertaking requires focused management attention, specialized skills
sets and resources including professional management.

(vii)  Synergies in operational process and creation of efficiencies by reducing time to
market and benefiting customers as well as optimization of operation and capital
expenditure;

(vii) Leading to increased competitive strength, cost reduction and efficiencies,
productivity gains by pooling the financial, managerial and technical resources,
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personnel capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies thereby significantly
contributing to future growth; and

(ix)  The Demerger will unlock value of both businesses and result in shareholder value
maximization.

15. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME
A. The appointed date as per the scheme of arrangement is October 01, 2024.

B. In consideration of the demerger and transfer of the Demerged Undertaking, the
Resultant Company will issue new shares as follow :-
a. 2439 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each of the Resultant Company, credited as fully paid-
up, for every 20 Equity Share of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up held in the Demerged
Company ("Share Entitlement Ratio").

16. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
a) Names and Addresses of the Directors and Promoters of GESPL as on the date of this notice
are as under:

NAME ADDRESS

Akshay Kashyap 163-D, Sainik Farms, Lane-W2 Western
Avenue, Delhi-110062

Inala Veerabhadra Rao C3/3004, Vasant Kunj, Delhi-110070

Priyanka Gulati A-9, Sarvodaya Enclave, New Delhi-
110017

Deepak Jain Farm No. 23, Road No. 1, Silver Oak Marg,
Ghitorni, Delhi-110030

Anmol Jain Farm No. 28, Silver Oak Farm, Ghitorni,

Pahadi Enclave, Ghitorni, Gadai Pur,
Delhi-110030

Naval Khanna BI-51, Anand Vihar, Jail Road, Hari Nagar,
Delhi-110064
Sanjay Mehta Apartment No. 7 B, Belgravia, Tower E,

Central Park-2, Sector-48, Chakarpur (74),
Chakkar, Gurugram, Haryana-122002

Ajay Kashyap

b) Names and Addresses of the Directors and Promoters of GBSPL as on the date of this notice
are as under:

NAME ADDRESS

Akshay Kashyap 163-D, Sainik Farms, Lane-W2 Western
Avenue, Delhi-110062

Sunanda Kashyap 163 D-Lane W-2, Western Avenue Pushpa
Bhawan S.O, New Delhi-110062

17. RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME
There is no such relationship between the Companies involved in the scheme of Arrangement.

18. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS (KMPS), THEIR
RELATIVES AND DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

The effect of the Scheme on various stakeholders is summarised below:
1. Equity shareholders, KMPs, promoter and non-promoter shareholders:-
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The Scheme will have no effect on Equity shareholders, KMPs, promoter and non-promoter
shareholders

2. Directors:-
The Scheme will have no effect on the office of the existing Directors of the Company and
the Resulting Company. Further, no change in the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Resulting Company is envisaged on account of the Scheme. It is clarified that, the
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company and of the Resulting Company may
change by appointments, retirements or resignations in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, Applicable Laws and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and of
the Resulting Company.

3. Employees:-
All employees of the Company engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall
be transferred to the Resulting Company on terms and conditions no less favourable than
those on which they are engaged by the Company and without any interruption in service

19. SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO REPORT AND FAIRNESS OPINIONS

Upon the scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the Demerger and transfer of the
Demerged undertaking. the Resultant Company shall issue and allot Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each at par value in the Resultant Company ("New Shares") to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Demerged Company as on
the Record Date in the following ratio:-

2,439 (Two Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty Nine only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of
the Resultant Company. credited as fully paid-up, for every 20 (Twenty only) Equity Shares of
Rs: 10/- each, fully paid-up held in the Demerged Company ("Share Entitlement Ratio").

20. THE DETAILS OF LITIGATIONS/ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

It is submitted that there is no Litigations or Contingent Liabilities pending against the
Demerged company under the Companies Act,2013 or under the Companies Act, 1956

21. AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CONFORMITY OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
SPECIFIED IN THE SCHEME WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Auditors of the Company and of the Resulting Company have confirmed that the
accounting treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the accounting standards

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

22. AMOUNT DUE TO SECURED CREDITORS OF THE COMPANIES AS ON

SEPTEMBER 30,2024
Particular GESPL GBSPL
Secured Creditor Rs. 6,30,24,616/- NIL

23. CORPORATE APPROVALS

a. Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of GESPL, at its meeting held on October
16, 2024. The Board of Directors of GESPL approved the Scheme. The meeting of the Board
of Directors of GESPL, held on October 16, 2024, was attended by all the Directors. None of
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the Directors of GESPL who attended the meeting voted against the Scheme. Thus, the
Scheme was approved unanimously by the Directors of GESPL who attended and voted at the
meeting.

Details of Directors of GESPL who voted in favour against/did not participate on
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of GESPL are given below:

Sr. No. NAME Votes for the Resolution/
Votes Against the
Resolution/ Did not Vote or

Participate
1. Akshay Kashyap Voted in favour
Sunanda Kashyap Voted in favour

b. The Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of GBSPL, at its meeting held on
October 16, 2024. The Board of Directors of GBSPL approved the Scheme. The meeting of
the Board of Directors of GBSPL, held on October 16, 2024, was attended by all the Directors.
None of the Directors of GBSPL who attended the meeting voted against the Scheme. Thus,
the Scheme was approved unanimously by the Directors of GBSPL who attended and voted
at the meeting.

Details of Directors of GBSPL who voted in favour against/did not participate on
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors of GBSPL are given below:

Sr. No. NAME Votes for the Resolution/
Votes Against the
Resolution/ Did not Vote or

Participate
1. Akshay Kashyap Voted in favour
Sunanda Kashyap Voted in favour

24. APPROVALS AND ACTIONS TAKEN IN RELATION TO THE SCHEME

The Companies involved in the Scheme would obtain such necessary approvals/ sanctions/ no
objection(s) from the regulatory or other governmental authorities in respect of the Scheme in
accordance with law, if so required.

The application along with the Annexures thereto (which includes the Scheme) were filed by
the Companies with the Tribunal on November 20, 2024.

This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3) and 102 and
any other applicable provisions of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromise,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

Ritu Tagore
Justice (Retd.)
Chairperson appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT for the Meeting

Dated this March 07, 2025
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Annexure A- Proxy Form
Form No. MGT -11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098
Name of the Company: Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
Registered Office: Plot No.62/4, IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122050.

Name of the Secured creditor (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

I/We, being the Secured Creditor (S) for RS. ....ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee as on
September 30, 2024 of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

STZNALUTE ...eeiiieiieiiiete ettt e et e et e e bt e saeeebe e saeenbeessaeenseenseesnsaenseeans

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Tribunal
Convened Meeting of Secured Creditors the Company, to be held on Tuesday April 08, 2025
at Plot No.62/4, IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122050 through video conferencing / other
audio visual means at 02:30 P.M. IST and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resolution Nos:
Ordinary Business: NA

Special Business:

1. Considering and, if thought fit, approving, with or without modification the Scheme of
Arrangement between Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or Demerged
Company”) and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or “Resulting
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors.

. . Affix
Signed this ......ccocevieviniiniiniieeee day of ..ooviiiiiii 2025 Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Secured creditor Signature of Proxy holder(s)
Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered  Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

2. If creditor is company/LLP then it should accompany this form with board resolution
authorizing person. The Performa board resolution is attached herewith as Annexure C.

3. If creditor is partnership firm then it should accompany this form with letter of authorization.
The Performa letter of authorization is attached herewith as Annexure D.

4. If creditor is sole proprietorship then it should accompany this form with letter of authorization.
The Performa letter of authorization is attached herewith as Annexure E.

5. If creditor is foreign entity then it should accompany this form with apostille and notarized
board resolution/ letter of authorization (as applicable in Annexures).
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Annexure B- Attendance Slip

ATTENDANCE SLIP
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098
Registered Office: Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050.

The amount due to Secured creditor(s) is / are to be furnished below

Amount Outstanding

Full Name(s) of Secured Creditor

S. No.

Name of Secured Creditor

Full Name of the Proxy if attending the Meeting: ...........ccecveeiieiiirciiicienie e

I hereby record my presence at the Tribunal Convened Meeting of Secured Creditors of the Company
to be held on Tuesday April 08, 2025, at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050
through video conferencing / other audio visual means.

Signature of the Secured Creditor / Proxy attending the Meeting

Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall.

Notes:

L.

2.

If attendee is sole proprietor, then it should carry identity proof.

If attendee is authorised person of company/LLP, then it should carry board resolution along
with identity proof. The Performa board resolution is attached herewith as Annexure C.

If attendee is authorised person of partnership firm, then it should carry letter of authorization
along with identity proof. The Performa letter of authorization is attached herewith as
Annexure D.

If attendee is representative of sole proprietorship, then it should carry letter of authorization
along with identity proof. The Performa letter of authorization is attached herewith as
Annexure E.

If attendee is representative of authorised person of partnership firm, then it should carry letter
of authorization along with identity proof.

If attendee is authorised person of foreign entity, then it should carry board resolution/letter of
authorization along with identity proof (as applicable in Annexures).
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Annexure C — Board Resolution

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF HELD ON DAY
OF 2025 AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.

AUTHORISATION FOR REPRESENTATION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and any
other applicable provisions of the Act read with Rules thereunder consent of the board be and is
hereby accorded to authorize Mr/Ms. , to act as representative of our
organization and to attend and vote in respect of all items of business at the Secured Creditors
meeting to be held on Tuesday, 08 April, 2025 at Plot No.62/4, IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-
122050 at 02:30 p.m. IST or any adjournments thereof.”

RESOLVED FUTHER that representative is hereby authorized to sign and submit all the
necessary papers, letters, forms, etc. to be submitted by the company in connection with the
meeting. The acts done and documents shall be binding on the company.”

For

Name of the director

Designation




On the letterhead of company

Annexure D — Letter of Authorization

AUTHORIZATION LETTER

To,

Chairperson

Secured Creditor meeting,

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited,
Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar,

Gurgaon Haryana- 122050.

Sub: Authorization letter to attend and vote in the Secured Creditors Meeting.
Dear Sir,

We M/s , do hereby authorize to represent us to
attend and vote at the meeting of Secured Creditors to be held on Tuesday, April 08, 2025 at
Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050 at 02:30 P.M. IST and exercise any
rights and the powers (including the right to vote by proxy) in the same manner as we could
exercise as a Secured creditor of GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
and any adjournment thereof.

PLACE:

DATE:

Signature:

Name:

Designation:




On the letterhead of Sole Proprietorship

Annexure E — Letter of Authorization
AUTHORIZATION LETTER (for sole proprietorship)

To,
Chairman
Secured Creditor meeting,

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited,
Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar,
Gurgaon Haryana- 122050.

Sub: Authorization letter to attend and vote in the Secured Creditors Meeting.
Dear Sir,

I undersigned do hereby authorize to
represent me to attend and vote at the meeting of Secured Creditors to be held on Tuesday,
April 08, 2025 at Plot No.62/4 IMT, Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana- 122050 at 02:30 P.M. IST
and exercise any rights and the powers (including the right to vote by proxy) in the same
manner as I could exercise as an Secured creditor of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private
Limited and any adjournment thereof.

PLACE:

DATE:

Signature:

Name:

Designation:
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Annexuve AV

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND THE RULES FRAMED
THEREUNDER
BETWEEN
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“GESPL” or “DEMERGED COMPANY?)
AND
GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“GBSPL” or “RESULTANT COMPANY?”)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS




PREAMBLE AND OBJECTIVES

This Scheme of Arrangement envisages demerger of energy storage
system business and E-mobility division (hereinafter referred to as
“Demerged Undertaking”) (as defined hereinafter) of Greenfuel
Energy Solutions Private Limited (“GESPL” or “Demerged
Company” or “Applicant Company No. 1”) in Greenfuel Battery
Solutions Private Limited (“GBSPL” or “Resultant Company” or
“Applicant Company No. 2”) and other matter consequential,
supplemental, incidental and/or otherwise integrally connected
therewith pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter

referred to as “2013 Act”).

A. Brief description of Companies:-

a. Demerged Company

i. Incorporation: Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private
Limited (“GESPL” or “Demerged Company” or
“Applicant Company No. 1”) having CIN:
U40107HR2006PTC056098 is a Private Limited company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 read with the rules made thereunder on October 31,
2006 and bearing Income Tax PAN- AACCG6903F. The
Registered Office of the Demerged Company is situated at

Plot No. 62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122050.
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ii.

Business: The Demerged Company is engaged in the

following businesses:

1. To Import, export, buy package, manufacture and sell
products for alternate fuel systems and alternate energy

systems.

2. To provide alternate energv solutions by acting as
consultants and representatives of  various
manufactures and to obtain and execute orders for
various technologies and products in the field of
alternate energy, Including CNG, hydrogen, LPG,

wind power hydro power and solar energy.

b. Resultant Companv

i

Y

Incorporation: Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private
Limited (“GBSPL” or “Resultant Company”’ or
“Applicant Company No. 2”) having CIN:
U31109HR2022PTC102300, is a Private Limited
Company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder
as on the March 25, 2022and bearing Income Tax PAN-
AAJCG6591L. The Registered Office of the Compary is
situated at Plot No.62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-

122051.

/ZAWa ,50%‘7“



ii. Business: The Resultant Company is engaged in the
following businesses:

1. To carry on in India and abroad the business of design,
develop, manufacture, and assemble, buy, sell, import,
export, distribute, and deal in batteries of all kinds and
descriptions for automotive and others including
Battery chargers, SMPS Chargers, Battery backup
devices, Solar Batteries, Tubular Batteries, BMS
(Battery Management System) and various batteries of
all description and all components, parts, accessories,

articles and fittings required for that purpose.

B. Rationale of the Scheme of Arrangement
The Demerged Company has two distinct business divisions i.e.
Manufacturing of advanced CNG Pipes & Energy Storage Systems
Division The CNG Pipes division ishereinafter referred to as
“Remaining Division” or “Remaining Business” or “Remaining
Undertaking” (as defined herein below) and energy storage system
business and E-mobility division is hereinafter referred to as
“Demerged Division” or “Demerged Business” or “Demerged
Undertaking” (as defined herein below) and the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company has decided to demerge the energy
storage system business and E-mobility division into the Resultant

Company to inter-alia include the following benefits:-




(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The nature of risk, competition, challenge, opportunities,
and business methods for the Manufacturing of advanced
CNG Pipes are distinctive and different from the
Demerged Undertaking/ Demerged Business carried out
by the Demerged Company. Further, the way energy
storage system business and E-mobility division is
required to be handled and managed separately, as it is not
similar to that of the Remaining Business.

The Demerged Business existing carried out by the
Demerged Company has significant potential for growth
and profitability and can attract different set of investors,
strategic partners, lenders, etc. Therefore, the demerged
business approaches its next phase of growth, it would be
strategically apt to segregate the demerged undertaking
from the demerged company.

The segregation shall enable the Demerged Company and
the Resultant Company to move forward independently,
with greater focus and specialization, building on their
respective capabilities. It will also help to channelize
resources required for all the businesses to focus on the
growing business and attract the right talent and provide
enhanced growth opportunities.

The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and
the Resultant Company to focus on and enhance their

respective business by streamlining operations and their
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)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

management structure ensuring better and efficient
management control.

Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking
value of each business and thereby paving way for
focused growth with a view to create significant
stakeholder value.

In order to strengthen and sustain the long-term
profitability, market share, customer service and face the
competitive regulatory environment, risks and policies,
the Demerged Undertaking requires focused management
attention, specialized skills sets and resources including
professional management.

Synergies in operational process and creation of
efficiencies by reducing time to market and benefiting
customers as well as optimization of operation and capital
expenditure;

Leading to increased competitive strength, cost reduction
and efficiencies, productivity gains by pooling the
financial, managerial and technical resources, personnel
capabilities, skills, expertise and technologies thereby
significantly contributing to future growth; and

The Demerger will unlock value of both businesses and

result in shareholder value maximization.
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Thus, as a whole, the scheme (as defined below) will be beneficial

for both the companies, their shareholders, creditors, employees

and all the other stakeholders.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme (as defined below) is divided into the following

parts:

DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING (A4S

DEFINED BELOW) AND VESTING OF THE SAME IN

THE RESULTANT COMPANY (A4S DEFINED BELOW).

PART I

PART II

PART III

PART IV

PART V

PART VI

Definitions and Interpretations

Capital Structure

Demerger of Demerged Undertaking From
Demerged Company to  Resultant
Company

Alteration to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association

Accounting Treatment

General Terms and Conditions




PART 1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

1.  DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the meanings ascribed to them
below:
(a) “1956 Act” means the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules,
regulations, circulars and notifications issued there under,

each as amended from time to time and to the extent in force.

(b) “2013 Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules,
regulations, circulars and notifications issued there under,

each as amended from time to time and to the extent in force.

() “Act” means the 1956 Act or 2013 Act, as may be
applicable, as amended or substituted by any statutory

modifications / re-enactment thereof.

(d) “Applicable Law(s)” means any statute, law, regulation,
ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, by-law, order,
directive, guideline, policy, requirement, or other restriction
issued, promulgated or enacted by any
governmental/regulatory/statutory authority or any similar

form of decision of, or de}ermination by, or any
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(2

interpretation or adjudication, having the force of law by any
of the foregoing authorities having jurisdiction over the
matter in question and includes any modifications, re-

enactments thereof;

“Appointed Date” means the opening business hours on
October 01, 2024 or such date as approved by the Hon’ble
NCLT, being the date with effect from which this Scheme

shall be deemed to have become operative;

“Board of Directors” in relation to the Demerged Company
and the Resultant Company, as the case may be, means the
Board of Directors of respective companies and shall, unless
it be repugnant to the context thereof or otherwise, include a
committee of directors or any person authorized by the

Board of Directors or such committee of Directors;

“Book Value(s)” means the value(s) of the assets and
liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined below),
as appearing in the books of account of the Demerged
Company at the close of business as on the day immediately

preceding the Appointed Date;

80 Roaanl ol Battany Salitinng Private : imited

8¢




(h)

)

@)

“Companies” means the Demerged Company and the
Resultant Company collectively, and “Company” shall

mean any one of them as the context may require.

“Demerged Company” or “GESPL” or “Applicant
Company No. 1” means M/s Greenfuel Energy Solutions
Private Limited, is a Company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the rules
made thereunder and having its registered office at Plot No.
62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122050. The
Corporate Identity Number of the Company is
U40107HR2006PTC056098 and Income Tax PAN -

AACCG6903F.

“Demerged Undertaking” means and includes the entire
business exclusively relating to business of energy storage
system business and E-mobility division as on the Appointed

Date and includes (without limitation) the following:

(i) all assets and property exclusively relating to the
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company
wherever situated, whether present, future or
contingent, tangible or intangible, in possession or
reversion corporeal or incorporeal, including without

limitation, plant and machinery, non-current
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(i)

assets, furniture, fixtures, appliances, accessories,
office equipment’s, actionable claims, and sundry
debtors, financial assets and accrued benefits thereon,
prepaid expenses, advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received, provisions,
receivables, funds, cheques and other negotiable
instruments, cash and bank balances and deposits
including accrued interests thereon with other persons,
tax related assets, tax benefits, exemptions and refunds

[hereinafter referred to as the “Assets”);

all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities
both present and future liabilities including outstanding
dues, duties, and obligations, fixed and contingent
liability exclusively pertaining to or arising out of
activities or operations of the relating to the Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Company in relation to
Demerged Undertaking, whether secured or unsecured,
whether in India rupees or foreign currency, whether or
not provided for in the books of accounts of the
Demerged Company and whether disclosed or not in its
financial statements (hereinafter referred to as

“Liabilities”);

all permits, licenses, registrations, permissions,

clearances, approvals, consents, no-objections, rights,,
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(iv)

V)

entitlements, exemptions, benefits, including in respect
of any pending application, whether made at the first
instance or for renewal/modification, made by the
Demerged Company and/or to which the Demerged
Company is entitled to as on the Appointed Date and
exclusively pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking

(hereinafter referred to as “Licenses/ Approvals”);

all trademarks, service marks, patents and other
intellectual property rights of every kind and
description whatsoever, of the Demerged Company
exclusively pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking,
however, specifically excluding the trademark and
service mark “Greenfuel”(hereinafter referred to as

“Intellectual Property Rights”};

all contracts, agreements, memorandum of
understanding, bids, expressions of interest, letters of
intent, commitment letters, other arrangements,
undertakings, deeds, bonds and other instruments of
whatsoever nature and description, whether written,
oral, digital or otherwise to which the Demerged
Company, and exclusively pertaining to the Demerged

Undertaking, is a party, or to the benefit of which the
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(Vi)

(vii)

Demerged Company may be entitled (hereinafter

referred to as “Contracts”);

all employees exclusively relating to the Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Company, whether
permanent or temporary, engaged as on the Effective
Date (hereinafter referred to as “Transferred
Employees”), all provisions and benefits made in
relation to such employees including provident funds,
registrations and reserves and contributions, if any,
made towards any provident fund, employees state
insurance, gratuity fund, staff welfare scheme or any
other special schemes, funds or benefits, existing for
the benefit of such Transferred Employees of the
Demerged Company (hereinafter referred to as
“Funds”), together with such of the investments made

by these Funds, which are referable to such employees;

all civil, criminal, revenue, tax including direct tax or
indirect tax proceedings or any other proceedings,
enquiries or investigations of whatsoever nature
initiated by or against the Demerged Company or to
which the Demerged Company is otherwise a party,
whether pending as on the Appointed Date or instituted

any time thereafter which egclusiyely pertains to the

ot /5"%7”
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Demerged Undertaking (hereinafter referred to as

“Proceedings”);

(viii) all books, records, files, papers, engineering and
process information, databases, catalogues, quotations,
advertising materials, lists of present and former credit,
and all other books and records, whether in physical or
electronic form, exclusively pertaining to the

Demerged undertaking;

(ix) all privileges and benefits of all contracts, agreements
and all other rights including lease rights, licenses,
powers and facilities of every kind and description
whatsoever of the Demerged Company exclusively
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking.

(x) Non-current investments made in Iride Technologies
Private Limited and Iride Fleet Management

Technologies LLP.

Notwithstanding the generality of the above, split balance
sheet of GESPL as on September 30, 2024 is set out in

Schedule 1 hereto.

(k)  “Effective Date” means the date or last of the dates on which

the certified copies of the orders of the NCLT sanctlomng
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(m)

(o)

the Scheme are filed by the Demerged Company and the
Resultant Company with the Registrar of Companies, NCT
of Delhi & Haryana. References in this Scheme to the date
of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme

becoming effective” shall mean the Effective Date;

“Equity Shares” means the equity shares of the Demerged

Company or the Resultant Company, as the case may be;

“Governmental Authority” means any applicable central,
state or local government, legislative body, regulatory or
administrative authority, agency or commission or
committee or any court, NCLT, instrumentality, judicial or
quasi-judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the

territory of India;

“IT Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended or

any statutory modification / re-enactment thereof.

“Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “National Company Law
Tribunal” means the Chandigarh bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal or any other appropriate forum or
authority empowered to approve the Scheme as per the law

r the time being in force.
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(p) “Taxation” or “Tax” or “Taxes” means all forms of taxes
and statutory, governmental, state, provincial, local
governmental or municipal impositions, duties,
contributions and levies, whether levied by reference to
income, profits, book profits, gains, dividend, net wealth,
asset values, turnover, added value, manufacture, import,
export, goods and services or otherwise and shall further
include payments in respect of or on account of tax, whether
by way of deduction at source, collection at source, advance
tax, goods and services tax, securities transaction tax or any
other transfer taxes or otherwise, in each case attributable
directly or primarily to the Party or any other Person and all
surcharge, cess penalties, charges, costs and interest relating

thereto;

a. “Record Date” means October 01, 2024, or such date as
may be mutually fixed by the Board of Directors or a
Committee thereof of the Demerged Company and
Resultant Company for the purpose of determining the
shareholders of the Demerged Company to whom New
Equity shares will be allotted pursuant to the Scheme (as

defined below);

b. “Remaining Division” or “Remaining Business” or

“Remaining Undertaking” means the entire remaining
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business comprising of (a) high pressure fuel delivery and
storage system (including components or sub-systems of
such systems) for CNG and LNG for automobiles
supplying to OEMs and for after-market customers; (b)
fuel delivery and storage systems for hydrogen-based
automobiles in India (including components or sub-
systems of such systems); (c¢) fire and smoke alarm,
detection and suppression systems (including components
or sub-systems of such systems) for automotive industry;
and (d) components and dispensing units for CNG gas
filling stations; of the Demerged Company other than the

Demerged Undertaking.

. “Resultant Company” or “Applicant Company No. 2”
means Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited, a
Private Limited Company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made thereunder and having its registered office situated at
Plot No.62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana-122051.
The Corporate Identity Number of the Company is
U31109HR2022PTC102300 and Income Tax PAN is

AAJCG6591L.
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d. “ROC” means the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi
and Haryana, having jurisdiction over the Demerged

Company and the Resultant Company.

e. “Scheme” or “Scheme of Arrangement” or “the
Scheme” or “this scheme” means this Scheme of
Arrangement for demerger of demerged undertaking to the
Resultant Company under Sections 230 to 232 and any
other applicable provisions, if any Companies Act, 2013
and in its present form or as amended or with any
modification(s) approved or imposed or directed in

accordance with applicable Laws by NCLT.

f. “Share Entitlement Ratio” means the ratio in which the
New Equity Shares of the Resultant Company are to be
allotted to the shareholders of the Demerged Company by

the Resultant Company as per Clause 7.1 of the Scheme.

g. “Shareholders” mean the persons registered as holders of

the Equity Shares of the Companies concerned.

2. INTERPRETATIONS

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

()

(2)

(h)

references in this Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming

effective” shall mean the Effective Date of the Scheme;

references to the singular includes a reference to plural and
vice versa and reference to any gender includes a reference
to all other genders;

reference to persons shall include individuals, firms, trusts,
bodies corporate (wherever incorporated or un-
incorporated), associations and partnerships;

headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not
affect the construction or interpretation of this Scheme;
references to a clause or paragraph or Schedule, as
applicable, shall be deemed to be a reference to a clause or
paragraph or Schedule of this Scheme;

reference to the words ‘hereof’, ‘herein’ and ‘hereby’ and
derivatives or similar words refer to this entire Scheme;
references to the words “including”, “inter alia” or any
similar expression, shall be construed as illustrative and shall
not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms; and
any reference to any statute or statutory provision shall
include:

a. all subordinate legislations made from time to time under
that provision (whether or not amended, modified, re-
enacted or consolidated from time to time) and any
retrospective amendment; and

b. such provision as from time to time amended, modified,

re-enacted or consolidated (Whether before or after the
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filing of this Scheme) to the extent such amendment,
modification, re-enactment or consolidation applies or is
capable of applying to the matters contemplated under
this Scheme and (to the extent liability there under may
exist or can arise) shall include any past statutory
provision (as amended, modified, re-enacted or
consolidated from time to time) which the provision

referred to has directly or indirectly replaced.
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PART II

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE DEMERGED
COMPANY
The Capital structure of the Demerged Company, as per the latest

Audited Balance Sheet (as at March 31, 2024) is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Authorized

2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 25,00,000/-
each

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 15,00,000/-
each
Total paid up capital :| 15,00,000/-

Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being
approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company,
the Subscribed and Paid-Up capital has been modified on account
of Buy-Back undertaken in pursuance to the provisions of Section
68 of the 2013 Act. The new Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up Share

Capital of the Demerged Company as on 30™ September, 2024 is

as under:

Bos Runant il Balian Snlitiang Private Limited

20




49

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,45,844 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 14,58,440/-

each

3.3 The Capital Structure of the Resultant Company, as per the

Audited Balance Sheet (as at March 31, 2024) is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in

Rs.)

Authorised

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each |: | 5,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each | : | 5,00,000/-

Total paid up capital : | 5,00,000/-

3.4  Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being
approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company,
there has been no change in the Authorized, issued, subscribed or
paid-up capital of the Resultant Company.

L)
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PART III
DEMERGER, TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE
DEMERGED UNDERTAKING IN THE RESULTANT
COMPANY

4. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED
UNDERTAKING

4.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective, on and from the Appointed
Date, the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Company shall,
together with all its Assets, Liabilities, Licenses, Contracts,
Intellectual Property, Proceedings, Transferred Employees,
Funds and Obligations, subject to the provisions of Clause 4.2
hereof in relation to the mode and manner of vesting, and without
any further act or deed or instrument and in accordance with
section 2(19AA) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 and as per
provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 and all other applicable provisions of law, be transferred to
and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and
vested in, the Resultant Company, as a going concern.

4.2 Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing and to the
extent applicable, unless otherwise stated herein, upon the
Scheme becoming effective, on and from the Appointed Date, the
mode and manner of vesting referred to 4.1 above, shall be as
under:-

4.2.1 Assets

42.1.1 In respect of such assets related to Demerged

Undertaking of the Demerged Company as are
For Gree
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42.1.2

moveable in nature or are otherwise capable of
transfer by delivery of possession or by endorsement
and delivery, the same shall so stand transferred to
and be vested in the Resultant Company and shall
become the property of the Resultant Company. The
vesting pursuant to this clause shall be deemed to
have occurred by manual delivery or endorsement,
as appropriate to the property being vested and title
and ownership on the property shall be deemed to
have been transferred accordingly, without requiring
execution of any deed or instrument of conveyance
for the same;

In respect of such of the Assets belonging to the
Demerged Company other than those specified in
Clause 4.2.1.1 hereof in relation to demerged
undertaking, including sundry debtors, outstanding
loans and advances, deposits or other amounts, if
any, recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be
received, cash and bank balances, deposits with
Governmental Authority, customers and others, the
same shall, without requiring any consent or
approval or no objection from the concerned party
and without any further act, instrument or deed by
the Demerged Company or the Resultant Company
or the need for any endorsements, stand transferred

from the Demerged Company to, and in favour of,
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4.2.1.3

42.14

the Resultant Company, notwithstanding any
provision to the contrary contained in the relevant
document or instrument concerning the same. Any
security, lien, encumbrance or charge created over
any Assets in relation to any dues or debts of the
Demerged Company, shall, without any further act
or deed, stand transferred to the benefit of the
Resultant Company and the Resultant Company will
have all the rights of the Demerged Company to
enforce such security, lien, encumbrance or charge,
by virtue of this Scheme;

In relation to Assets belonging to the Demerged
Undertaking, which require separate documents for
vesting in Resultant Company, or which the
Demerged Company and/ or Resultant Company
otherwise desire to be vested separately, the
Demerged Company and Resultant Company will
execute such deeds, documents or such other
instruments, if any, as may be mutually agreed;

If assets acquired by the Demerged company after
the appointment date and prior to the effective date
for operation of the Demerged Undertaking shall be
deemed to have been acquired for and on behalf of
Resultant Company and shall also stand transferred
to and vested in Resultant Company with effect from

the Effective Date; and
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4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.1.5 Itis hereby clarified that if any Asset (including but
not limited to any estate, rights, title, interest in or
authorities relating to such assets) in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking which the Demerged
Company owns, cannot be transferred to Resultant
Company for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such asset in trust for the benefit

of Resultant Company.

Licenses/ Approvals

All Licenses exclusively relating to the Demerged
Undertaking of Demerged Company shall stand transferred to
and be vested in the Resultant Company, without any further
act or deed by the Demerged Company or the Resultant
Company and be in full force and effect in favour of the
Resultant Company, as if the same were originally given to,
issued to or executed in favour of the Resultant Company and
the Resultant Company shall be bound by the terms thereof,
the obligations and duties there under, and the rights and
benefits under the same shall be available to the Resultant

Company.

Benefits
All Benefits, entitlements, incentives and concessions under
any Applicable Laws, to which the Demerged Company is

entitled to and/or to the extent statutorily available to the
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oy
Demerged Company exclusively relating to Demerged
Undertaking, along with associated obligations, shall stand
transferred to, and be available to, the Resultant Company as
if the Resultant Company was originally entitled to all such

benefits, entitlements, incentives and concessions.

4.2.4 Contracts

4.24.1 All Contracts exclusively relating to Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Company which are
subsisting or having effect immediately before the
Effective Date shall stand transferred to and vested
in the Resultant Company and be in full force and
effect in favour of the Resultant Company and may
be enforced by or against it as fully and effectually
as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the
Resultant Company had been or beneficiary or
oblige thereto or thereunder.

42.42 The Resultant Company shall be entitled to enter
into and/or issue and/or execute deeds, writings or
confirmations or enter into any arrangements,
confirmations or novation’s in order to give effect in
the provisions of this clause if so required.

4243 Any inter-contracts between the Demerged
Company and the Resultant Company shall stand
cancelled and cease to operate upon the coming into

/' effect of this Scheme. LI
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4.2.5 Intellectual Property

All Intellectual Property of the Demerged Company
exclusively relating to Demerged Undertaking shall stand
transferred to and be vested in the Resultant Company and be
in full force and effect in favour of the Resultant Company and
may be enforced by or against it as fully and effectually as if,
instead of the Demerged Company, the Resultant Company

had been a party or beneficiary or oblige thereto.

4.2.6 Transferred Employees

4.2.6.1 All Transferred Employees of the Demerged
Company shall be deemed to have become the
employees and staff of the Resultant Company with
effect from the Appointed Date, and shall stand
transferred to the Resultant Company without any
interruption of service and on terms and conditions
no less favourable than those on which they are
engaged by the Demerged Company as on the
Effective Date, including in relation to the level of
remuneration and contractual and statutory benefit,
incentive plans, terminal benefits, gratuity plans,
provident fund plans and any other retirement
benefits.

4.2.6.2 Services of all Transferred Employees with the

«L\Pemerged Company prior to their transfer, shall be
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4.2.6.3

taken into account for the purposes of all benefits to
be given by the Resultant Company to which such
Transferred Employees may be eligible, including in
relation to the level of remuneration and contractual
and statutory benefits, incentive plans, terminal
benefits, gratuity plans, provident fund plans and
other retirement benefits and accordingly, shall be
reckoned from the date of their respective
appointment in the Demerged Company. The
Resultant Company undertakes to pay the same, as
and when payable under Applicable Laws.

All contributions made by the Demerged Company
on behalf of the Transferred Employees and all
contributions made by the Transferred Employees
including the interests arising thereon, to the Funds
and standing to the credit of such Transferred
Employees’ account with such Funds, shall, upon
the Scheme becoming effective, be transferred to the
funds maintained by the Resultant Company along
with such of the investments made by such Funds
which are referable and allocable to the Transferred
Employees and the Resultant Company shall stand
substituted for the Demerged Company with regard
to the obligation to make the said contributions.
The terms and conditions of service applicable to the

Transferred Employees on the Effective Date will
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For Greenfuel

not in any way be less favorable to them than those
applicable to them immediately before the Effective
Date.

4.2.6.5 The contributions made by the Demerged Company
under Applicable Law in connection with the
Transferred Employees, to the Funds, for the period
after the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be

contributions made by the Resultant Company.

4.2.7 Liabilities

4.2.7.1 All debts, liabilities, secured and unsecured loans
including general or multi-purpose borrowings of
the Demerged company in relation to Demerged
Undertaking, shall, pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act to the extent they are outstanding as
on the Effective Date, without any further act,
instrument or deed, stand transferred to and be
deemed to be the debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations, etc., as the case
may be, of the Resultant Company and shall be
enforceable against the Resultant Company, as if it
had incurred such Liabilities;

4.2.7.2 The Resultant Company alone shall be liable to
discharge and satisfy the Liabilities as the

borrower/creditor in respect thereof;

/M 29
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4.2.7.3  This Scheme shall not operate to enlarge or extend

4.2.7.4

the security for any of the Liabilities and the
Resultant Company shall not be obliged to create
any further or additional securities in respect of such
Liabilities after the Effective Date, unless otherwise
agreed to by the Resultant Company with such
secured creditors and subject to the consent and
approval of the existing secured creditors of the
Resultant Company, if any. Further, this Scheme
shall not operate to enlarge or extend the security for
any debt, loan, deposit, credit or other facility
availed by the Resultant Company, in as much as the
security shall not extend to any of the Assets forming
part of the Undertaking;

In so far as the existing security in respect of the
Liabilities is concerned, such security shall, without
any further act, instrument or deed, be modified and
shall be extended to and shall operate only over the
Assets being transferred as part of demerger, which
have been charged and secured and subsisting as on
the Effective Date, provided that if any of such
Assets have not been charged or secured in respect
of the Liabilities, such Assets shall remain
unencumbered and the existing security referred to
above shall not be extended to and shall not operate

over such Assets;
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4.2.7.5

4.2.7.6

4.2.7.7

4.2.7.8

4.2.7.9

Subject to Applicable Laws, it shall not be necessary
to obtain the consent of any third party or other
person, who is a party to any contract or arrangement
by virtue of which such Liabilities have arisen in
order to give effect to the provisions of this clause;
It is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in
this clause, no other term or condition of the
Liabilities is being modified by virtue of this
Scheme, except to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication;

The Scheme shall not in any manner affect the rights
and interests of the creditors of the Demerged
Company or be deemed to be prejudicial to their
interests and in particular the secured creditors of the
Demerged Company (if any) shall continue to enjoy
and hold charge upon their respective securities and
properties without any change;

Where any of the Liabilities pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking on the Appointed Date has
been discharged by the Demerged Company after
the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed to have been for and
on behalf of the Resultant Company;

All loans raised and used, and liabilities incurred, if
any, by the Demerged Company after the Appointed

Date, but prior to the Effective Date, for the
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no

Demerged Undertaking shall be deemed to be
transferred to, and discharged by Resultant
Company without any further act or deed; and
4.2.7.10 The provision of this clause shall operate
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
with any deed or writing or the terms of sanction or
issue or any security document, all of which
instruments shall stand modified and/or superseded

by the foregoing provisions.

4.2.8 Legal and other such Proceedings

All Proceedings transferred to the Resultant Company
pursuant to the Scheme, shall not abate or be discontinued or
in any way be prejudicially affected by anything contained in
this Scheme and the proceedings shall continue and any
prosecution shall be enforced by or against the Resultant
Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it
would or might have been continued, prosecuted or enforced
by or against the Demerged Company, as if this Scheme had
not been made. The Resultant Company undertakes to have
such Proceedings relating to or in any way connected with the
Demerged Company, initiated by or against the Demerged
Company, transferred in the name of the Resultant Company
as soon as possible, after the Effective Date, and to have the
same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the

Resultant Company. The Resultant Company also undertakes
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to pay all amounts including interest, penalties, damages, etc.,

which the Demerged Company may be called upon to pay or

secure in respect of any liability or obligation relating to the

Demerged Company for the period from the Appointed Date

up to the Effective Date and any costs incurred by the

Demerged Company in respect of such proceedings started by

or against it relatable to the period from the Appointed Date

up to the Effective Date upon submission of necessary

evidence by the Demerged Company to the Resultant

Company for making such payment.

429 Tax

4.29.1

4.2.9.2

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all taxes/
cess/ duties, direct and/or indirect taxes, payable by
or on behalf of the Demerged Company in relation
to Demerged Undertaking, from the Appointed Date
onwards, including all or any refunds and claims,
including refunds or claims pending with
Governmental Authority and including the right for
any tax allowances/ deductions (including tax
holiday benefits), of the Demerged Company, shall,
for all purposes, be treated as the tax/ cess/ duty,
liabilities or refunds, claims allowances/ deductions
of the Resultant Company;

The tax deducted at source (“TDS”)/advance tax and

self-assessment tax paid, if any, by the Demerged
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Company under the Income-Tax Act, 1961 or any
other statute in respect of income of the Demerged
Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking
assessable for the period commencing from the
Appointed Date shall be deemed to be the tax
deducted, advance tax and self-assessment tax paid
by the Resultant Company and credit for the same
shall be allowed to the Resultant Company
notwithstanding that certificates or challans for IDS
and tax payments made are in the name of the
Demerged Company and not in the name of the
Resultant Company;

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Resultant
Company is expressly permitted to claim refunds/
credits on account of service tax/ Goods and Service
Tax in accordance with the Service Tax/ Goods and
Service Tax Rules in relation to Demerged
Undertaking;

The CENVAT credits/unutilized service tax/ Goods
and Service Tax credits, if any, relating to the taxes
paid on input services availed by the Demerged
Company shall be transferred to the credit of the
Resultant Company, as if all such unutilized credits
were lying to the account of the Resultant Company.
The Resultant Company shall accordingly be

entitled to set off all such unutilized credit against
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4209.5

the service tax/ Goods and Service Tax payable by
it, without limitation;

Any tax paid by the Demerged company on or after
the appointed date, in respect of income assessable
from the said date, shall be deemed to have been paid
by or for the benefit of the Resultant Company. The
Resultant Company shall, after the Effective Date,
be entitled to file the relevant returns (including
income-tax returns, TDS returns, cenvat returns,
service tax returns, Goods and Service tax returns
and other tax returns) with the authorities concerned
for the period after the Appointed Date
notwithstanding that the period for filing such return
may have elapsed. Further, the Resultant Company
shall, after the Effective Date, be entitled to revise
the relevant returns, if any, filed by the Demerged
Company for any year, if so necessitated or
otherwise required consequent to this Scheme
notwithstanding that the time prescribed for such

revision may have elapsed.

4.2.10 Books and Records

All books, records, files, papers, engineering and process

information, catalogues, quotations, advertising materials, if

any, lists of present and former clients and all other books and

:ds, whether in physical or electronic form, of the
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Demerged Company, to the extent possible and permitted

under Applicable Laws, be handed over by them to the

Resultant Company.

S.  CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

> 7%

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to the

Effective Date:-

3.1

512

313

The Demerged Company shall carry on its business
related to Demerged Undertaking with reasonable
diligence and commercial prudence and in the same
manner as is consistent with past practices;

The Demerged Company, in relation to Demerged
Undertaking, shall carry on and shall be deemed to
have carried on all their business activities and shall
hold and stand possessed and shall be deemed to
have held and stood possessed of all its assets, rights,
title, interests, authorities, contracts, investments
and decisions, benefits for and on account of and in
trust for the Resultant Company;

All obligations, liabilities, duties and commitments
attached, related or pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking of Demerged Company shall be
undertaken and shall be deemed to have been
undertaken for and on account of and in trust for the

Resultant Company; and
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9.2

5.1.4 All the profits and income, relating to Demerged
Undertaking, accruing or arising to the Demerged
Company and all expenditure or losses, relating to
Demerged Undertaking, arising or incurred by the
Demerged Company shall, for all purposes, be
treated and be deemed to be the profits and incomes
or expenditures and losses, as the case may be, of the

Resultant Company.

All assets acquired leased or licensed, licenses obtained,
benefits, entitlements, incentives and concessions granted,
Contracts entered into, Intellectual Property developed or
registered, or applications made thereto, Liabilities
incurred and Proceedings initiated or made party to,
between the Appointed Date and till the Effective Date by
the Demerged Company relating to Demerged
Undertaking shall be deemed to be transferred and vested
in the Resultant Company. For avoidance of doubt, where
any of the Liabilities as on the Appointed Date (deemed to
have been transferred to the Resultant Company) have been
discharged by the Demerged Company on or after the
Appointed Date but before the Effective Date, such
discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on behalf
of the Resultant Company for all intent and purposes and
under all Applicable Laws. Further, in connection with any

transactions between the Demerged Company and the
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Resultant Company between the Appointed Date and upto
the Effective date, if any taxes under Goods and Service
Tax has been paid by the Demerged Company, then upon
the Scheme becoming effective, the Resultant Company
shall be entitled to claim refund of such Good and Services

tax paid by the Demerged Company.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme
and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of the Demerged
Company occurs by virtue of Part III of this Scheme itself,
the Resultant Company may, at any time after the Effective
Date, in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so
required under Applicable Law or otherwise, give notice in
such form, as may be required or as it may deem fit and
proper or enter into or execute deeds (including deeds of
adherence), confirmations, novations, declarations or other
writings or documents as may be necessary and carry out
and perform all such formalities and compliances, for and
on behalf of the Demerged Company, including, with or in
favour of and required by (i) any party to any Contract to
which the Demerged Company is a party; or (ii) any
Governmental Authority or non-government authority, in
order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme.
Provided, however, that execution of any confirmation or

noyation or other writings or arrangements shall in no
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event postpone the giving effect to this Scheme from the

Effective Date.

5.4  To the extent possible, pending sanction of this Scheme,
the Demerged Company or the Resultant Company, in
relation to Demerged Undertaking, shall be entitled to
apply to the relevant Governmental Authority and other
third parties concerned, as may be necessary under any
Applicable Law or contract for transfer or modification of
such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Resultant
Company may require to own and carry on the business
with effect from the Effective Date and subject to this
Scheme being sanctioned by the relevant Governmental

Authority.

5.5 For the purpose of giving effect to the order passed as per
provision of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of this
Scheme by the NCLT, the Resultant Company shall, upon
the Scheme becoming effective, be entitled to get the
record of the change in the legal right(s) standing in the
name of the Demerged Company relating to Demerged
Undertaking, in its favour in accordance with such order
and the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other

pplicable provisions of the Companies Act.
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6. Saving of Concluded Transactions
The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Company with and into
the Resultant Company under Part III of the Scheme, shall not
affect any transaction or proceedings already completed or
liabilities incurred by the Demerged Company pertaining to
Demerged undertaking either prior to or on or after the Appointed
Date till the Effective Date, to the end and extend by one the
behalf of the Demerged Company in respect thereto as acts, deeds

and things one executed by and on behalf of itself.

7 Issue of share

7.1  Upon the scheme becoming effective and in consideration
of the Demerger and transfer of the Demerged undertaking,
the Resultant Company shall issue and allot Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each at par value in the Resultant Company
(“New Shares”) to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company whose names appear in the Register of Members
of the Demerged Company as on the Record Date in the
following ratio:-
2,439 (Two Thousand Four Hundred and Thirty Nine only)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each of the Resultant Company,
credited as fully paid-up, for every 20 (Twenty only)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up held in the

Demerged Company (“Share Entitlement Ratio”).
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7.4

The Shareholders of the Demerged Company holding
shares in the Demerged Company in dematerialised form

shall be issued new shares in dematerialised form.

All New Shares to be issued and allotted by the Resultant
Company under this Scheme shall rank pari-passu in all
respects with the existing shares of the Resultant Company,
excluding the right to receive dividends which are declared
prior to the effective date of the Scheme, and shall be
subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

the Resultant Company.

The issue and allotment of the Resultant Company Shares
is an integral part hereof and shall be deemed to have been
carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without
requiring any further act on the part of the Resultant
Company or the Demerged Company or their shareholders
and as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such
other Applicable Law, were duly complied with. It is
clarified that the approval of the members of the Resultant
Company to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their
consent/approval for the issue and allotment of the

Resultant Company Shares under applicable provisions of

the Act.
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7.5 Upon the issuance and allotment of equity shares pursuant
to Scheme, the Resultant Company shall take necessary
steps, in accordance with applicable laws.

7.6  Fractional entitlements, if any, arising pursuant to the
application of the Share Entitlement Ratio shall be rounded

off to the nearest higher integer.
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PART IV

ALTERATION TO THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES

OF ASSOCIATION

3. COMBINATION, CONSOLIDATION AND

RECLASSIFICATION OF AUTHORISED __SHARE

CAPITAL

8.1

Upon the scheme becoming effective, without any further
acts or deeds on the part of the Resultant Company and
notwithstanding anything contained in Sections 13 and 61
of the Companies Act, 2013 the Authorized Share Capital
of the Resultant Company shall automatically stand
increased without any further act, instrument or deed on
the part of the Resultant Company including without
payment of stamp duty and fees payable to Registrar of
Companies, by the Authorised Share Capital of Resultant
Company i.e., by Rs. 18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen
Crores Only) divided into 1,80,00,000 (One Crore Eighty
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each
and Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Resultant Company (relating to the
Authorised Share Capital) shall, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be and stand altered, modified and
amended and for this purpose the stamp duties and fees
paid on the authorized share capital of the Demerged

Company shall be utilized and applied to the increased
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authorized share capital of the Resultant Company and no
payment of any extra stamp duty and/or fee shall be
payable by the Resultant Company for increase in the

authorized share capital to that extent.

8.2 Consequent upon the demerger, the Authorised Share

Capital of the Resultant Company shall be as under:

Authorised Share | Amount (in Rs.)

Capital

1,80,00,000 Equity Shares | 18,00,00,000/-

of Rs.10/- each

Total 18,00,00,000/-

8.3 Accordingly, upon sanction of this scheme, Clause V
(Capital Clause) of the Memorandum of Association of the
Resultant Company shall stand altered as under:-

“The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.

18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Only) divided into

1,80,00,000 (One Crore Eighty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.

10/- each.”

8.4 It is clarified that the approval of the members of the
Resultant Company to this Scheme shall be deemed to be

their consent / approval also to the alteration of the
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4.

Memorandum of Association of the Resultant Company as

may be required under the Act.

PART V

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED

COMPANY

4.1

4.2

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the book value of
assets and liabilities related to the Demerged Undertaking,
as appearing in the books of account of the Demerged
Company and transferred to the Resultant Company, shall
be reduced from the corresponding balances of the assets
and liabilities of the Demerged Company in accordance
with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax

Act.

The excess of the book value of assets over the book value

of liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking, shall be

adjusted

4.2.1 Firstly with Securities Premium Account; and then
with

422 Balance if any to be continued as demerger
adjustment reserve in the books of the demerged

company.
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4.3 The accounting treatment provided hereinabove is in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act and/ or
generally accepted accounting principles in India as on the
date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors
of Demerged Company and Resultant Company and shall
be followed as such or in such other manner as the

regulatory authorities may approve.

S.  TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE RESULTANT
COMPANY

5.1 The assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking shall

be transferred to the Resultant Company at their values as

appearing in the books of account of the Demerged

Company at the close of business of the day immediately

preceding the Appointed Date. In determining the value of

the assets referred to hereinabove, any change in value of

assets consequent to their revaluation shall be ignored in

terms of Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961;

5.2 The aggregate face value of the new shares issued by the
Resultant Company to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall stand credited to the share capital of the

Resultant Company in its books of accounts;
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5.5

The deficit, if any, of value of assets over the value of
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be
treated as Goodwill and the excess, if any, of value of assets
over the value of liabilities pertaining to the Demerged

Undertaking shall be treated as Capital Reserve.

The Resultant Company shall record in its books of
accounts, all transactions relating to the Demerged
Undertaking of Demerged Company, in respect of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, from the Appointed Date to

the Effective Date.

The accounting treatment provided hereinabove is in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards as on
the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company and the Resultant Company and
shall be followed as such or in such other manner as the

regulatory authorities may approve.
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6.

PART VI
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
TAX NEUTRALITY
6.1 This Scheme, in so far as it relates to the demerger of

Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the

Resultant Company, has been drawn up to comply with the

conditions relating to "Demerger" as specified under the

tax laws, including Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961, which include the following:

6.1.1 all the assets and properties of the Demerged
Undertaking, being transferred by the Demerged
Company, immediately before the demerger shall
become the properties of the Resultant Company,
respectively, by virtue of such Demerger;

6.1.2 all the liabilities relatable to the undertaking, being
transferred by the Demerged Company,
immediately before the demerger, become the
liabilities of the Resultant Company by virtue of the
demerger;

6.1.3 the property and the liabilities of the undertaking or
undertakings being transferred by the Demerged
Company are transferred at values appearing in its
books of account immediately before the demerger;

6.1.4 the Resultant Company issues, in consideration of

the demerger, its shares to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company on a proportionate basis,
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except where the Resultant Company itself is a
shareholder of the Demerged Company;

6.1.5 the shareholders holding not less than three-fourths
in value of the shares in the Demerged Company
(other than shares already held therein immediately
before the demerger by, or by a nominee for, the
Resultant Company or, its subsidiary) become
shareholders of the Resultant Company or
companies by the virtue of the demerger, otherwise
than as a result of the acquisition of the property or
assets of the Demerged Company or any
undertaking thereof by the Resultant Company; and

6.1.6 the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking shall be

on a going concern basis;

And other relevant sections (including Sections 47 and 72A) of

the Income Tax Act, 1961.

6.2 The demerger and transfer and vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking under this Scheme have been proposed in
compliance with Section 2(19AA) and other applicable
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. If any terms or
provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to be
inconsistence with the provisions of the said section at a
later date including Resultant from an amendment of law

ot for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of the
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said Section of the Income Tax Act, 1961 shall prevail and
the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined
necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such
modification will however not affect the other parts of the
Scheme. The power to make such amendments, as may
become necessary shall vest with the Board of Directors of
Demerged Company, which power can be exercised at any
time and shall be exercised in the best interests of the

companies and their shareholders.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE OF
THE SCHEME

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any
modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the NCLT or
the concerned Governmental Authority, shall be operative with
effect from the Appointed Date upon the order sanctioning the

Scheme taking effect from the Effective Date.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
8.1 This Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the
following:

8.1.1 The Scheme being agreed to (in the manner
prescribed) by the respective requisite majorities of
shareholders and creditors, if any, of the Demerged
Company and Resultant Company, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013;
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8.2

8.1.2  confirmation order of the Scheme being issued by
the Central Government or NCLT, as applicable;

8.1.3 such other approvals and sanctions as required
under Applicable Law in respect of this Scheme
being obtained; and

8.1.4 Certified copy of the confirmation order of the
Scheme issued by NCLT being filed by the
Demerged Company and the Resultant Company,
with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and

Haryana respectively.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein,
the non-receipt of any sanctions or approvals for transfer
of a particular asset or liability forming part of the
Demerged Company to the Resultant Company pursuant to
this Scheme, shall not affect the operation of this Scheme,
if the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and

the Resultant Company so decide.

9. APPLICATIONS TO THE TRIBUNAL

9.1

Pvt. Lid,

The Demerged Company and the Resultant Company
shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make applications to the
NCLT under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013
seeking orders for dispensing with respective meetings or
convening, holding and conducting of the meetings of the

respective classes of the shareholders and/ or creditors of
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the Demerged Company and the Resultant Company as
may be directed by the NCLT. The list of secured creditors
and unsecured creditors will be produced as on 30
September 2024 has been set out in Annexure A-13, A-14,
A-17 and A-18 hereto and the provisional financials as on
30" September 2024 has been set out in A-8 And A-10

hereto.

9.2  On the Scheme being agreed to by the requisite majorities
of the classes of the shareholders and/ or creditors of the
Demerged Company and the Resultant Company as
directed by the NCLT/or their meetings dispensed with, the
Demerged Company and the Resultant Company shall with
reasonable dispatch, apply to the NCLT, for sanctioning
the Scheme under Section 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other provisions of the Act (if any) and for
such order or orders, as the said NCLT may deem fit for

carrying this Scheme into effect.

10. COSTS, EXPENSES AND STAMP DUTY
All costs, charges, taxes including stamp duties, levies and all
other expenses, if any, arising out of/or incurred for carrying out
and implementing the Scheme and matters incidental thereto,
shall be borne and paid by the Resultant Company (save as
otherwise expressly agreed in writing). It is hereby clarified that

since 41l movable properties belonging to the Demerged
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11.

Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking, shall be

transferred by way of delivery and possession, no stamp duty

shall be payable on transfer of such movable Assets to Resultant

Company in terms of the Scheme.

MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE

SCHEME

11.1

¥2

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Scheme, the Demerged Company and the Resultant
Company (acting through their respective Board of
Directors) may make or assent, from time to time, to any
modifications,  variations, amendments, including
providing any clarifications or confirmations to/in the
Scheme, which they deem necessary and expedient or
beneficial to the interests of the stakeholders and/or as may
be required/approved by the Registrar of Companies/
Official Liquidator/ Central Government/ concerned
Governmental Authority only with respect to demerged

undertaking.

The Demerged Company (acting through their respective
Board of Directors) shall be authorized to take all such
steps and give such directions, as may be necessary,
desirable or proper, to give effect to this Scheme, or to
withdraw the Scheme and to resolve any doubts,

difficulties or questions that may arise in regard to the
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meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or implementation
or working thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected
therewith, whether by reason of any directive or orders of
the Central Government/any other Governmental
Authority or otherwise, howsoever arising out of or under
or by virtue of this Scheme or any matter connected
therewith and to do and execute all acts, deeds, matters and

things necessary for giving effect to this Scheme.

11.3 For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any
modifications or amendments thereof or additions thereto,
the delegated authority of the Demerged Company may
give and are hereby authorized to determine and give all
such directions as are necessary and such determination or
directions, as the case may be, shall be binding on all
parties, in the same manner as if the same were specifically

incorporated in this Scheme.

12. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/
SANCTIONS
In the event that the Scheme is not sanctioned by the NCLT or in
the event any of the other requisite consents, approval,
permissions, sanctions or conditions are not obtained or complied
with or for any other reason, the Scheme cannot be implemented,
the Scheme shall not take effect and shall be withdrawn and in

that event no rights or liabilities, whatsoever, shall accrue to or be
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incurred inter se by the parties or their shareholders or creditors

or employees or any other person.

REMAINING UNDERTAKING

13:1 Save and except the Demerged Undertaking of the

Demerged Company and as expressly provided in this Scheme,
nothing contained in this Scheme shall affect the Remaining
Undertaking of the Demerged Company, or any other business,
assets, properties, rights and liabilities of the Demerged
Company, which shall continue to belong to and be vested in and
be managed by the Demerged Company and the Resultant
Company shall have no right, claim or obligation in relation to
the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and nothing
in this Scheme shall operate to transfer any of the Remaining

Business to the Resultant Company

132 No part of the remaining undertaking shall be transferred

to the Resultant Company pursuant to the Demerger. If any part
of the Remaining Undertaking is inadvertently held by the
Resultant Company after the Effective Date, the Resultant
Company shall take such actions as may be reasonably required
to ensure that such part of the Remaining Business is transferred
back to the Demerged Company, promptly and for no
consideration, and without any Tax implications. The Resultant
Company shall bear all costs and expenses as may be required to

be incurred by the Demerged Company or the Resultant

4 gmpany for giving effect to this Clause.
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If the Resultant Company realizes any amounts after the Effective Date

that pertains to the Demerged Company or the Remaining Undertaking,

the Resultant Company shall immediately pay such amounts to the

Demerged Company. Similarly, if the Demerged Company discharges

any liability w.r.t Demerged Undertaking after the Effective Date, the

Resultant Company shall make payment of such amounts to the

Demerged Company.

14. RESIDUAL PROVISIONS

14.1

14.2

Even after this Scheme becomes operative, the Resultant
Company shall be entitled to realize all monies and
complete and enforce all pending contracts and
transactions in respect of the Demerged Undertaking in the
name of the Demerged Company insofar as may be
necessary till the transfer of rights and obligations of the
Demerged Company to the Resultant Company under this

Scheme.

On the approval of the Scheme by the members of the
Demerged Company and the Resultant Company pursuant
to Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, it shall be
deemed that the said members have also accorded all
relevant consents under relevant provisions of the Act to

the extent the same may be considered applicable.
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SCHEDULE I

SPLIT BALANCE SHEET OF GREENFUEL ENERGY

SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED AS ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

: Amount
Particulars
(in INR)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds 39,75,47,338
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings :
(b) Long-term Provisions 42,33,805
Current liabilities
(a) Trade payables (Net) 2,21,41,668
(b) Other current liabilities 20,90,043
(c) Short-term Borrowings -
(d) Short-term Provisions 4,87,847
TOTAL 42,65,00,701
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment And Intangible Assets
6,95,71,832
(i) Property Plant And Equipment
(ii) Intangible Assets
(b) Non-current investments 39,62,603
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) -
Current assets
(a) Current Investments -
(b) Inventories 13,03,90,362
(c) Trade receivables 19,58,87,813
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 2,00,00,000
(e) Short-term loans and advances 66,66,304
(f) Other Current assets 21,787
TOTAL
42,65,00,701
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Share Calculation&

Valuation Report

(Pre Demerger)

For
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(‘DEMERGED COMPANY?’)
&
GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(‘RESULTING COMPANY?)

Prepared by: Hitesh Jhamb
(IBBI REGISTERED VALUER)
Registration No: IBBI/RV/11/2019/12355

Contact Details
Hitesh Jhamb
CS, RV (SFA), LLB, B.Com

09953001339, 09717218118

Email: jassociates.cs@gmail.com valuer@valuationmart.com

Office Address: 270-A, FF, Patparganj, Mayur Vihar,
Phase-l, Delhi-110091
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JHAMB & ASSOCIATES S a %,
(Company Secretaries | Registered Valuers | Trademark Agents) *% $ 3
GSTIN: 07TAREPJ1432E1ZB | URN: UDYAM-WB-10-0093045 69;9‘,9@6‘.

Date: 15-10-2024

To,
The Board of Directors,

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Address: Plot No.62/4, IMT Manesar,

Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122050

CIN: - U40107HR2006PTC056098

CC: GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Address: Plot No.62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon,

Haryana, India, 122051

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300

Dear Sirs,

Subject: Recommendation of Number of Shares to be issued to
Shareholders of Demerged Company for the Proposed
Demerger as explained below.

I refer to my engagement letter dated 10.10.2024, whereby Greenfuel
Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “You” or “Client”
or “the Company” or “"DEMERGED COMPANY”), have requested the
undersigned, Hitesh Jhamb (hereinafter referred to as "Valuer”, "“I,” "my,”
or "me”), a Registered Valuer registered with the Insolvency & Bankruptcy
Board of India having Registration Number IBBI/RV/11/2019/112355, to
carry out the recommendation of Number of Shares to be issued to

Shareholders of Demerged Company for the Proposed Demerger as explained
below.

My report summarizing the valuation analysis and share calculation as on
30.09.2024 (“Valuation Date"”) considering various data as stated in Source

of Information is hereby enclosed.
HITESH JHAMB
IBBI/RV 01912355
REGISTERED VALUER

Office: 270-A, FF, Patparganj, Mayur Vihar, Phase-1, Delhi-110091
Contact: 9953001339 /9717218118;

Email: jassociates.cs@gmail.com; valuer(@valuationmart.com
Website:www.valuationmart.com
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A summary of the analysis is presented in the accompanying report, andthe
factors considered in formulating our opinion. In addition, the sources of
information used in this report and the scope of work in the course ofour

assignment, noting any limitations on our assignment have also been listed in
the report.

HITESH JHAMB
IBBI/RV 01912355
REGISTERED VALUER

Hitesh Jhamb

Registered Valuer (SFA)

Regn. No. IBBI/RV/11/2019/12355CP No.
DJF/RVO/005/SFA/DJF/RVO/2019-20/DELHI/B-3(F)/10020
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Purpose:

. We have been informed that the Board of Directors of the Companies
are considering segregation and transfer of Demerged Company’s
Manufacturing of Lithium-Ion Batteries for E-mobility Division (as defined
hereinafter) to Resulting Company’s business, which can be leveraged in
providing the support services solely to the Greenfuel Battery Solutions
Private Limited. The demerger would facilitate both the companies in
future expansion with proper financial arrangement, better management
and increase in profitability.

. Pursuant to the Proposed Demerger, the Demerged Company’s entire
Manufacturing of Lithium-Ion Batteries undertaking for E-mobility
Division including all the assets, liabilities, employees etc. of Demerged
Company’s E-Mobility Division would be transferred and vested with and
into Resulting Company.

. For this purpose, we have carried out an evaluation of all Segmentsof
Demerged Company and evaluation of Resulting Company, with a view
to recommend number of Shares to be issued to Shareholders of
Demerged Company for the Proposed Demerger as explained above.

. The information contained herein, and our report is absolutely
confidential. It is intended for the sole use and information of the
Companies, and only in connection with the Proposed Demerger. Any
person/ party intending to provide finance/ invest in the shares/
businesses of any of the Companies shall do so after seeking
professional advice from their advisors and after carryingout their
own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an
informed decision. It is hereby notified that any reproduction, copying or
otherwise quoting of this report or any part thereof, other than in
connection with the Proposed Demerger as aforesaid, can be done only
with our prior permission from us (Valuer of Report) in writing.

HITESH JHAMB
IBBI/RVIN/201912355
REGISTERED VALUER




II. About the Valuer:

Mr. Hitesh Jhamb is a valuer registered with Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board
of India (“IBBI”) with Registration No.: IBBI/RV/11/2019/12355 for the
purpose of valuation of all Segments of Demerged Company and evaluation of
Resulting Company, with a view to recommend number of Shares to be issued
to Shareholders of Demerged Company for the proposed demerger as
explained above.

Further, Mr. Hitesh Jhamb is also a Company Secretary Holding membership
with the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India. Furthermore, he is also a
law graduate from Chaudhary Charan Singh University, Meerut and has
completed his bachelor’s in commerce from Kurukshetra University.

III. Background/ Information about GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED (Demerged Company)

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED ("Demerged Company”) is
a private limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on
October 31, 2006, having its registered office at Plot No. 62/4, IMT Manesar,
Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122050. The Corporate Identification Number of the
Demerged Company is U40107HR2006PTC056098.

The Demerged Company is involved in Manufacture and sell products for
alternate fuel systems and alternate energy systems.

IV. Background/ Information about GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“Resulting Company”)

GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“Resulting Company” or
"AIGSPL") is a newly formed private limited company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 2013, on 25" March 2022, having its registered office at Plot
No.62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122051. The Corporate
Identification Number of the Resulting Company is U31109HR2022PTC102300.

The Resulting Company shall be engaged in manufacture advanced Lithium-Ion

Batteries for Emobility & Energy Storage System. H|TE§€’SJH/\ MR

IBBI/RV 01912355
REGISTERED VALUER
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V. Financial Statement of Demerged Company

Balance Sheet

Balance Sheet as on 30th Sept'24

Note
No.

Particulars 30th Sept'24

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds (Bal. Fig.) 1,06,91,18,121 91,54,53,644
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserves and surphus

Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowmgs 4,79,22,404 2,74,89,629
(b) Long-term Provisions 2,48,53,646 2,48,53,646

Current liabilities
(a) Trade payables (Net) ' 22,04,73,743 22,64,07,724
(b) Other current liabilities 24,43,23,063 5,37,65,051
(¢) Short-term Borrowings 1,51,02,212 16,83,88,310
(d) Short-term Provisions 7,44,44,498 4,44,37,212

TOTAL 1,69,62,37,687 | 1,46,07,95,216

ASSETS

Non-current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment And Intangible Asse 16,42,93,519 16,45,08,719
(i) Property Plant And Equipment

(1) Intangible Assets

(b) Non-current mvestments ) 39,62,603 39,62,603
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 76,11,556 76,11,556

Current assets
(a) Current Investments : 2,20,85,522 5,07,85,522
(b) Inventories : 44,74,22,076 41,17,64,151
(c) Trade receivables 72,58,21,467 70,34,64,259
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 10,64,68,170 1,09,52,230
(¢) Short-term loans and advances : 21,29,60,614 10,24,67,753
(f) Other Current assets 56,12,161 48,78,424

TOTAL 1,69,62,37,687 | 1,46,07,95,216

HITE JHAMB

IBBI/RV 01912355
REGISTERED VALUER




Profit & Loss

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN:U40107THR2006PTC056098

Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended 30th Sept, 2024

Particulars

Note
No

30th Sept'24

31st March'24

Revenue from operations
Other Income

Total Income

Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed

(b) Changes m mventories of finshed goods
(c) Employee benefits expenses

(d) Finance costs

(¢) Depreciation and amortisation expenses
() Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before Exceptional & Extra-ordinary Items and Tax
Exceptional Items

Profit before Extra-ordinary Items & Tax

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Tax Expense:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax

Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations

Tax Expensces for Discontinumg Operation

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (After Tax)

Profit / (Loss) For the Period

Significant accounting policies

20479.26

15675.89
-400.14
840.64
118.72
170.24
948.06
17353.40
3125.86
-270.67

2855.20

2855.20

718.60

2136.60

0.00
0.00
0.00

2136.60

29174.31

126.68

29300.99

20360.93
2430.26
1496.72
269.45
354.60
2365.15

27277.12

2023.87

-637.33

1386.54

1386.54

425.70
1.36

959.47

0.00
0.00
0.00

959.47

HITE

IBBI/RV
REGISTERED VALUER

| JHAMB
01912355
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VI. Appointing Authority:

We were assigned with this project of valuation of the equity shares of the
Companies and to recommend number of Shares to be issued to Shareholders
of Demerged Company for the proposed demerger as explained above, by the
Board of Directors of the DEMERGED COMPANY by signing the engagement
letter.

VII. Disclosure of Valuer’s Interest/ Conflict:

The Valuer is not related to the Company or its promoters or its director or
their relatives, the valuer has not any interest or confliction of interest with
respect to the valuation under consideration.

IX. Sources of Information:

For the purposes of the valuation exercise, we have relied upon the following
sources of information:

(a) Discussion and indications on Scheme of Demerger;

(b) Unaudited but management certified annual accounts of both
Companies mentioned above for the period ended 31st March
2024;

(c) Brief overview of both Companies mentioned above and theirpast
and current operations;

Other information provided as well as discussions held with the
management and other personnel of the Companies; and

Published and secondary sources of data whether or not made
available by the Companies.

Management Representation Letter.

X. Basis of Valuation

There are several commonly used and accepted methods for determining the
fair value of the business of a company. They mainly fall under the following
three categories:

» Net Asset Value based valuation approach ("NAV Method")ﬂlTEwH/p‘-r‘ {s

IBBI/RV 01912355

e Market based valuation a ach (“"Market Method”); and
rKe €d valuation approac ( rKe € ) REGISTERED VALUER

e Income based valuation approach (“Income Method”)
The application of any aforesaid method of valuation depends on the nature




of operations, level of maturity of the businesses, future business potential and
purpose of valuation. For the purpose of arriving at the fair market value, it
would be necessary to select an appropriate basis for valuation from among
the various alternatives available.

e NAV Method

In Net Asset Value (NAV) Method, the assets and liabilities are considered at
realizable value or book value, including intangible assets and contingent
liabilities, if any, which are not stated in the balance sheet. From the value of
the assets, the potential liabilities which would have to be paid would be
deducted and resultant figure is the NAV of the company.

This valuation approach is mainly used in case where the asset basedominates
the earnings capability or in a case where the valuing entity isa holding
company deriving significant value from its assets and investments. NAV
Method is most applicable for the business where the value lies in the
underlying assets or in cases where the ongoing operations of the business
and the potential future cash flows of the business cannot be reasonably
estimated or where the operations / business of an entity is discontinued.

e Market Method
The Market based valuation approach includes the following two methods:

e Market Price Method

Under the Market Price Method, the market price of a share as quoted ona
recognized stock exchange is normally considered as the fair value ofthe
shares of that company, where such quotations are arising from the shares
being regularly and frequently traded. The market value generally reflects the
investors’ perception about the true worth of the company.

Since the equity shares of the Companies are not listed on any stock
exchange, this valuation methodology is not applicable and hence not
considered by us.

HITESH JHAMB

« Comparable Companies Multiple Method IBBI/RV 01912355

REGISTERED VALUER
Under the Comparable Companies Multiple Method, the value is determined
on the basis of multiples derived from valuations ofcomparable companies,
as manifest through stock market valuations of listed companies. This




valuation method is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place
between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant
to valuation.

Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted fordifferences
between the circumstances. The base(s) to which a multiple is commonly
applied include sales, EBITDA, cash flows and book value.

Both Companies provide services only to related parties and do not earn any
third-party revenue. Given this and the resulting non-comparability with listed
companies, this method has not been used to calculate the fair value of equity
shares of the Companies.

e Discounted Cash Flow Method

The Income Method focuses on the profit/earnings potential of the business
being valued. The Income Method of valuation includes Discounted Cash Flow
("DCF") Method which has been discussedhereinafter.

Under DCF Method, the free cash flows attributable to the firm for a
predetermined number of future years and perpetuity are considered and
discounted to their present value. The free cash flows attributable to the firm
are the cash flows from operating activities as reduced by the estimated/
planned capital expenditure and working capital requirementin each of the
future years.

The cash flow projections, the estimations of capital expenditure and working
capital requirement are based on the management’s view of the future
business prospects of the company and the anticipated economic conditions in
relation to the industry in which the company operates.

The merging Companies has discontinued operations w.e.f. 30.09.2024
accordingly, given the lack of projections on business and cash-flow, this
method cannot be applied. Further, for maintaining uniformity in valuation
approach for a fair swap ratio, the discounted cash flow approach is not
adopted for the purpose of valuation of DEMERGED COMPANY either.

HITE ' JH/\\’\""T)
XI. Selection of Valuation Methodology IBBI/RV 01912355

_ REGISTERED VALUER
The most appropriate method for valuation is the one that is best suitedto

the facts and circumstances of the case. As mentioned above, the market
price method, comparable multiples method were considered, but not found
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appropriate due to factors mentioned above.

A uniform approach, using the Net Asset Method (NAV Method) and DCF
Approach, has been considered for the valuation of both Companies. In
this context, in our view, NAV method and DCF Method can be adoptedfor
the demerger of business segment of any Company, as the business will be
going Concern and there will be transfer of Assets and Liabilities related to
business segment which is to be transferred to resulting company.

XI. Valuation, Calculation & Conclusion:

1. NAV CALCULATION

A. Pre Demerger Valuation of Battery Division of GREENFUEL
ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Based on the Unaudited but management certified Balance Sheet for
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED drawn up on a pre-
Demerger basis, the Equity value of Battery Division of GREENFUEL ENERGY
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED is determined at INR 17.78 Crore (approx).

Hence, the value of one equity share of GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED (without considering effect of Demerger) based on DCF
Method is INR 1,219.26 (Rupees One Thousand Two Hundred Nineteen and
Twenty Four paisa Only).

FY24-25
(30.09.2024)
Actual

FY24-25 (1st
October Onward)
Forecast

Forecast

Forecast

Frar-2s
Forecast

Forecast

Terminal Value
Forecast

Ternover

22,35,39,775.39

24,58,93,752.93

$6,33,20,233.98

67,59,84,280.78

£1,11,81,136.94

57,34,17,364 32

97,34,17,364.32

POT

(6,64,27,701.19)

1,22,94 687.65

2,81, 66,011.70

3,37,55,214.04

4,06,55,056.85

4,86,70,868.22

4,86,70,868.22

Less - Durect Taxes Paid (Net of Deferred Tax)

19,71,367.81

1,02,08,714.61

1,22,50,457.53

1,22,50,457.53

PAT

6,64,27,701.19)

1,22,94,687.65

2,81,66,011.70

3,18,27,846.23

3,03,50,342.24

3,64,20,410.69

3,64,20,410.69

Add : Depreciation

82,08,277.63

84,13 484 57

1,74,52,850.31

1,83,25,492.83

1,92,41,767.47

2,02,03,855.84

2,02,03,855.84

Less Capetal Expenditure

(75,02,200.49)

(82,52,430.43|

(90,77,673.48)

(99,85,440.83|

(1,09,83,984.91)

{2,02,03,855.84)

Add Interest [post tax)

Less Loan availed / paid

WC Requirement

(1,41,76,357 52)

{1,47,61,577.60)

|1,53,63,6398 91)

{1,59,82,330.53)

(1,66,16,938.40)

|1,66,16,938 40}

Free Cash Flows to the Entity

(5,82,15,423.56)

{9,70,394.73)

2,26,04,853.97

2,57,11,966 66

2,36,24,33835

2,90,23,343.22

1,98,03,47229

Mid Year Time

025

1.00

2.00

3.00

4,00

4.00

Discounting Factor

1.00

0.96

027

075

065

0.56

056

Free Cash Flow to Entity

15,82,15,423.56)

19,36,171.62)

1,95,80,770.85

1,92,92,630.36

1,53,54,790.36

1/6340,289.79

1,11,45,45558

HITE
IBBI/RV

JHAM
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Computation on Equity Value Amount
Cumulative present value of Cash Flows 6,96,32,310.23
Terminal Value 10,13,21,953.85
Enterprise Value after survival discount 17,09,54,264.08
DLOM 1,70,95,426.41
Equity Value post illiquidity discount 15,38,58,837.67
Add: Cash & Non Current Investments30.09.2024 23962602.65
Less: Debt 30.09.2024 -
Add: ESOP
Equity Value in Rs. 17,78,21,440.32
No. of Equity Shares 1,45,844.00
Equity value per share 1,219.26

B. Pre Demerger Valuation of GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED (Resulting Company)

Based on the Unaudited balance sheet of GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED as on 30.09.2024, the net value is determined at 4.11
Lakh.

Hence, the value of one equity share of GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED based on the net assets is INR 8.22/- but in
compliance with Section 53 of Companies Act, 2013 the value per
share-is-considered-as INR 10.00/- (Rupees Ten only).

Greenfuel Battery Solutions Pvt Ltd
Net Asset Valuation
Perticulars in INR

As on date -—> 31-03-2024

Share Capital 5,00,000.0
Reserve & Surplus -89,101.0
Net Worth 4,10,899.0

No. of Equity Shares

Price Per Share

Price Per Share AS PER Section 53 of
Companies Act

HITESH JHAMB
IBBI/RVIY/201912355
REGISTERED VALUER
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C. Calculation of SWAP Ratio

SWAP Calculation Value per share

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED ( E-Mobility Division) 1,219.26
Greenfuel Battery Solutions Pvt Ltd 10

SWAP

Based on above calculations it has been recommended that 2439 Shares of Greenfuel
Battery Solutions Pvt Ltd will be issued against 20 shares of Greenfuel Energy Solutions
Private Limited along with consideration in cash or one extra share for any fraction.

Limitations & Disclaimers:

e Our report is subject to the scope and limitations detailedhereinafter.
As such the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts.

Our work did not constitute an audit, a due diligence, anindependent
validation of the financial statements for any of the businesses and
accordingly, we do not express any opinion on the same.

Valuation analysis and results are also specific to the date of this report.
A valuation of this nature involves consideration of various factors
including those impacted by prevailing stock market trendsin general
and industry trends in particular. This report is issued on the
understanding that the Companies have drawn our attention to the
relevant material information, which they are aware ofconcerning the
financial position and any other matter, which may have an impact on
our recommendation.

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both written
and verbal information. The terms of our engagement were such that
we were entitled to rely upon the information provided by the Companies
without detailed inquiry. Our conclusions are based on these
assumptions, forecasts and other information given by/on behalf of the
Companies. The management of the Companies have indicated to us
that they have understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or

HITESH JHAMB
IBBI/RVINVA01912355
REGISTERED VALUER




misstatements may materially affect our valuation analysis/results.
Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for any errors in the above
information furnished by the Companies and their impact on the
present exercise.

The determination of valuation, by its very nature, cannot be regarded
as an exact science and the conclusions arrived at in many cases will be
subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. Given
the same set of facts and using the same assumptions, expert opinion
may differ due to a number of separate judgments and decisions, which
have to be made. There can therefore be no standard formulae to
establish an undisputable share swap ratio. The final responsibility
for the determination of share swap ratio/ fair equity value at which
the Proposed Demerger shall take place, will be with the Board of
Directors of both the Companies.

This report is prepared for the Clients and must be used only for the
specific engagement and regulatory reporting purposes and must not

be copied, disclosed or circulated or referred to in correspondence or
discussion with any person. The report is confidential to the Clients and
it is given on the express undertaking that it is not communicated, in
whole or in part, to any third party without our prior written consent.
Neither this report nor its contents may be used for any other purpose
without our prior written consent.

Whilst all reasonable care has been taken to ensure that the facts stated
in the report are accurate and the opinions given are fair and reasonable,
neither ourselves, nor any of our partners, officers or employees shall in
any way be responsible for the contents stated herein. Accordingly, we
make no representation or warranty, express or implied, in respect of
completeness, authenticity or accuracy of such statements. We expressly
disclaim any and all liabilities which may arise based upon the
information used in this report. We are not liable to any third party in
relation to the issue of this report. In no event we shall be liable for any
loss, damage, costor expense arising in any way from fraudulent acts,
misrepresentations or willful default on the part of the Companies, their

management, directors, employees or agents. .
HITE JHAMB
IBBI/RV 01912355
REGISTERED VALUER
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e Our report is not, nor should it be construed as our opining orcertifying
the compliance of the Proposed Demerger with the provisions of any law
including company law and taxation law or as regards any legal
implications or issues arising from such proposed demerger.

We have no obligation to update this report because of events or
transactions occurring subsequent to the date of this report.

This report is based on the information provided to us by the management.
This report has been prepared solely for the aforesaid purpose and should not be
used for any other purpose.

Contact Information

Office Address: o
270-A, FF, Patparganj, Mayur HITESH JHAMB
Vihar Phase I, Delhi - 110091 IBBI/RV 01912355

REGISTERED VALUER

Mob: 09953001339, 09717218118 Hitesh Jhamb
Email: jassociates.cs@gmail.com (Registered Valuer)

valuer@valuationmart.comn

IBBI/RV/11/2019/12355




Amwnexuve A-5° 16Y
GREENFUEL

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE MEETING OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2024, AT 11:00 AAM. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO. 62/4, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON,
HARYANA-122050

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ENTERED INTO
BETWEEN M/S GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (GESPL/
DEMERGED COMPANY) AND M/S GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED (GBSPL / RESULTANT COMPANY)

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of the
Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh (hereinafter referred to as “Tribunal™) and any other
appropriate authority as may be applicable and subject to the consent of the members, the consent of
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby accorded for entering into Scheme of
Arrangement into between M/s Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
GESPL/ Demerged Company) with M/s Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as GBSPL/ Resultant Company), as per the terms and conditions mentioned in the Scheme
of Arrangement (*Scheme’) with Appointed Date as October 01, 2024.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme of Arrangement, being
advantageous and beneficial to the shareholders and stakeholders of the Companies and the terms
thereof being fair and reasonable, be and is hereby approved along with the relevant documents
related thereto subject to the requisite approval of Hon’ble Tribunal and any other concerned
authority, if any, thereof.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Akshay Kashyap (having DIN: 00795591), Director of the
Company, Mr. Ankit Agrawal (having PAN: AJYPA2162J), Authorized Signatory, Ms. Renuka
Sharma (having Aadhaar: 686977708443), Authorized Signatory, Ms. Shweta Pareek (having Adhaar:
301892980607) and/or any other Director(s) of the Company be and are hereby severally or jointly
authorized to take all necessary steps for-

1. Filing of applications with the Tribunal for seeking directions for convening/dispensation the
meeting of the creditors or class of creditors (if any required), or of the members or class of
members as may be considered necessary and other directions to give effect to the Scheme.

2. To convene and conduct members/ creditors meeting as may be directed by the Hon’ble
Tribunal.

3. To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
above Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution;

4. To produce all documents, matters or any other evidence in connection with the matters
aforesaid and any other proceedings incidental thereto and arising therefrom;

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
An IATF 16949: 2016 & ISO 14001 : 2015 & ISO 45001 : 2018 Crgti(rgefifs
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To file petition for confirmation and sanctioning of the Scheme by the Hon’ble Tribunal or such

other competent authority(ies):

6. To obtain approval from and/or represent before Registrar of Companies, Regional Director.
Income Tax Authorities and such other appropriate authorities as may be required:

7. To take all procedural steps for having the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Tribunal
including filing necessary applications, affidavits, and petitions and signing. verifying and
affirming all applications, affidavits and petitions as may be necessary:

8. To accept services of notices or other processes which may from time to time be issued in
connection with the matter aforesaid and also to serve any such notices or other processes to
parties or persons concerned;

9. To make any alterations/changes in the Scheme upon the recommendations/instructions of any
of the authority(ies) including but not limited to the Tribunal, as may be expedient or necessary
which does not materially change the substance of the Scheme;

10. To suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified by any
appropriate authority or as may be suo moto decided by the Board in its absolute discretion:

1. To sign, execute, and certify all applications, petitions, vakalatnamas, forms, affidavits,
undertakings, resolutions and any other papers or documents relating to the Scheme and to file,
submit, and furnish all or any of such documents as are mentioned hereinbefore with respective
authorities including but not limited to the Tribunal and generally to do and execute all acts,
matters, things, deeds and documents as may be necessary and expedient for the purpose of
giving effect to the Scheme:

12. To engage such other consultants, advocates, company law experts and counsels as may be
considered necessary;

13. To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary and incidental to give

effect to the Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Ms. Sheetal Sharma and Mr. Mohit Singhal,
Practicing Company Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as “Authorized Representatives /
Attorney”), be and are hereby approved and be appointed by the Company as its true and lawful
attorney/representative to sign any application/document, to make appearance on behalf of the
company and further authorized to make the necessary alterations, corrections, additions / deletions
and to execute any paper documents and carry all allied and other incidental jobs in connection with
the documents, papers, filed/ furnished to Tribunal or any other authority concerned for the proposed
arrangement of M/s Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as GESPL/
Transferor Company) with M/s Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
GBSPL/ Transferee Company™) and Mr. Akshay Kashyap, Director and / or any other Director of the
Company, be and/ or are hereby severally, authorized to sign such letters of engagement or such other
documents that will be necessary for formalizing the engagement with the Authorized

Representatives.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or authorized signatory of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to sign any copy of this resolution or any other document/ information required to
be submitted with concerned authorities as a certified true copy thereof and furnish the same to

whomsoever concerned for giving effect the aforesaid resolution.”
/ICERTIFIED TRUE COPY\\

For and on behalf of
Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

reénfuel Energy Solutions P, Lid,

s il

/Akshay Kashyap, - Director
Director
DIN: 00795591
Address: - 163-D, Sainik Farms,
Lane-W2 Western Avenue Delhi-110062
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE MEETING OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2024 AT 09:00 A .M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY SITUATED AT PLOT NO.62/4, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON,
HARYANA-122051

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ENTERED INTO
BETWEEN M/S GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (GESPL/
DEMERGED COMPANY) AND M/S GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMITED (GBSPL / RESULTANT COMPANY)

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of the
Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh (hereinafter referred to as “Tribunal™) and any other
appropriate authority as may be applicable and subject to the consent of the members, the consent of
the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby accorded for entering into Scheme of
Arrangement into between M/s Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
GESPL/ Demerged Company) with M/s Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as GBSPL/ Resultant Company), as per the terms and conditions mentioned in the Scheme
of Arrangement (‘Scheme”) with Appointed Date as October 01, 2024.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme of Arrangement, being
advantageous and beneficial to the shareholders and stakeholders of the Companies and the terms
thereof being fair and reasonable, be and is hereby approved along with the relevant documents
related thereto subject to the requisite approval of Hon’ble Tribunal and any other concerned
authority, if any, thereof.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Ms. Sunanda Kashyap (having DIN: 01069655), Director of the
Company, Mr. Ankit Agrawal (having PAN: AJYPA2162J), Authorized Signatory, Ms. Renuka
Sharma (having Aadhaar: 686977708443), Authorized Signatory, Ms. Shweta Pareek (having Adhaar:
301892980607) of the company and/or any other Director(s) of the Company be and are hereby
severally or jointly authorized to take all necessary steps for-

1. Filing of applications with the Tribunal for seeking directions for convening/dispensation the
meeting of the creditors or class of creditors (if any required), or of the members or class of
members as may be considered necessary and other directions to give effect to the Scheme.

2. To convene and conduct members/ creditors meeting as may be directed by the Hon’ble
Tribunal.

3. To settle any question or difficulty that may arise with regard to the implementation of the
above Scheme and to give effect to the above resolution;

4. To produce all documents, matters or any other evidence in connection with the matters
aforesaid and any other proceedings incidental thereto and arising therefrom;

5. To file petition for confirmation and sanctioning of the Scheme by the Hon’ble Tribunal or such
other competent authority(ies):

6. To obtain approval from and/or represent before Registrar of Companies, Regional Director,
Income Tax Authorities and such other appropriate authorities as may be required;

7. To take all procedural steps for having the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the Tribunal
including filing necessary applications, affidavits, and petitions and signing, verifying and
affirming all applications, affidavits and petitions as may be necessary;

Poar Aranntinl Battans Ol iinns Private |7GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
3 CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300
REGISTERED OFEICE: PLOT NO. 62/4, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON, HARYANA 122051 EMAIL: accounts@greenfuelenergy.in

/ / 3 Contact No. :0124-4999820




8. To accept services of notices or other processes which may from time to time be issued in
connection with the matter aforesaid and also to serve any such notices or other processes to
parties or persons concerned:

9. To make any alterations/changes in the Scheme upon the recommendations/instructions of any
of the authority(ies) including but not limited to the Tribunal, as may be expedient or necessary
which does not materially change the substance of the Scheme:

10. To suspend, withdraw or revive the Scheme from time to time as may be specified by any
appropriate authority or as may be suo moto decided by the Board in its absolute discretion:

11. To sign, execute, and certify all applications, petitions, vakalatnamas, forms, affidavits,
undertakings. resolutions and any other papers or documents relating to the Scheme and to file,
submit, and furnish all or any of such documents as are mentioned hereinbefore with respective
authorities including but not limited to the Tribunal and generally to do and execute all acts,
matters, things, deeds and documents as may be necessary and expedient for the purpose of
giving effect to the Scheme;

12. To engage such other consultants, advocates, company law experts and counsels as may be
considered necessary;

13. To do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary and incidental to give
effect to the Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the appointment of Ms. Sheetal Sharma and Mr. Mohit Singhal,
Practicing Company Secretaries (hereinafter referred to as “Authorized Representatives /
Attorney”), be and are hereby approved and be appointed by the Company as its true and lawful
attorney/representative to sign any application/document, to make appearance on behalf of the
company and further authorized to make the necessary alterations, corrections, additions / deletions
and to execute any paper documents and carry all allied and other incidental jobs in connection with
the documents, papers, filed/ furnished to Tribunal or any other authority concerned for the proposed
arrangement of M/s Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as GESPL/
Demerged Company) with M/s Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
GBSPL/ Resultant Company) and Mr. Sunanda Kashyap, Director and / or any other Director of the
Company, be and/ or are hereby severally, authorized to sign such letters of engagement or such other
documents that will be necessary for formalizing the engagement with the Authorized
Representatives.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or authorized signatory of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to sign any copy of this resolution or any other document/ information required to
be submitted with concerned authorities as a certified true copy thereof and furnish the same to
whomsoever concerned for giving effect the aforesaid resolution.”

//ICERTIFIED TRUE COPY\\
For and on behalf of
Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limiteds . ¢ 15-0a0 Solitions Private Linied

.8 [ IR :
APY allam, B0 80 Deivata | {mmita
1 Snlibiane Private Limited

Sunanda Kashyap Director
Director

DIN: 01069655

Address: - 163 D-Lane W-2,

Western Avenue Pushpa Bhawan S.0
New Delhi-110062
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U Sanjesh Yawarant & @,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Greenfucl Energy Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of Cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March

31, 2024 and its Profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Office : A-13, First Floor, Green Park Extn., New Delhi-110016
Phone : 011-46021429, Mobile : 9810554613, E-mail : sanjeshjawarani@gmail.com
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Report but does

not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work which we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash

flows of the Company, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,

including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

o~

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Lid.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA's, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the

Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuesinthe financial statements or, if such

For Greenfuel Energy Sotutions Pvt. Lid.
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the said

Order, to the extent applicable.
2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

For Greenfuel Energy Sotutions Py, Lid.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,

g)

For Greenfuel Energy Sofutions Pvt. Lid.

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company with reference to these standalone financial statements and the operating

offectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial

position.

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

IIl. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

IV. a. The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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b. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

and

¢. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that

the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

V.  The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of

the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VI. (i) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our

audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

(ii) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2024, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record

retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0011648N
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Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor
Membership No. 086293
UDIN:2M08(2S2 R AT WS DY

Place: Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our Report of even date to the members of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private

Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

i. (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible

assets;

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at

regular intervals and no material discrepancies were found on such verification;

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in

the financial statements are held in the name of the company;

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

assets) or intangible assets or both during the year;

(e) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45

of 1988) and rules made thereunder;

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate; as informed to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the

aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at

any point of time during the year), in aggregate, from_banks or financial institutions on the

basis of security of current assets. The quartof statements filed by the company

i’:{),' Creenr
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with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Company;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the Company has not made any investment, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability

Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (iii) of the order are

not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has no loans,

investments, guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are to be complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
under the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder,

where applicable. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable;

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the order are not

applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable;

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which has not been deposited on

account of any dispute;

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd. .
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According to information and explanations given to us by the management, Company does not
have any unrecorded transactions which were surrendered or disclosed as income during the

vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of any loans or other borrowings or in the interest payable thereon to any

lender;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been

declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has applied the

term loans for the purpose for which they were obtained;

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no funds raised

on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any

funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,

associates or joint ventures;

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies;

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public otfer

(including debt instruments) during the year;
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,

partially or optionally convertible) during the year;

=or Greenfuel Energy Sofutions Pt. Ltd.
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(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, any fraud by the company or

any fraud on the company has not been noticed or reported during the year;

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government;

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints,

received during the year by the company;

Company is not a Nidhi company, accordingly provisions of the Clause 3(xii) of the Order is

not applicable to the company;

According to the information and explanations given to us, we arc of the opinion that all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements

etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards;

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected

with him and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, we¢ are of the opinion that the
company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 (2 of 1934).

(b) According to the information and explanations given Lo us, we report that the Company

has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
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Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934;

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India,

accordingly the provisions of sub-clause (c) and (d) of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not

applicable;

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than
ongoing projects, there is no unspent amount required to be transferred a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, pursuant to any ongoing
project, there is no unspent amount required to be transferred to a special account in
compliance with the provision of subsection (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said
clause under this report.
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For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 9011648N
[Sa{icsh Kumar Jawarani

Proprictor
Membership No. 086293

UDIN:2Y 086252 RkATq WEIYY

Place: Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024
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Annexure ‘B" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Greenfuel Encrgy
Solutions Private Limited ("the Company’) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit

of standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the J
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,

2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act and the Guidance Note, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

. L R
ons VL A 3
Gteeme\ eaerdy Son
For S{ 4 I
K!\O\"\sed S'\Qnato“l Authorised Sianaton
\$)




2\

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

The Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over finpnets

porting may become
s
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 00 .164/8N

S, jesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor
Membership No. 086293 {

UDIN: 2036292 BkATq W4 4™

Place: Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024

For Greenter p.. i

?‘\l _ ik ek
golions
¢ or Greenfue) gor) g&-«m@
Aumoﬁsed signato™y Authorisert

22




23

GREENFUEL E.\"ERG\' SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107THR2006PTC056098
Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2024
(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at A
Particulars ‘ ¥ s
Notes 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A {FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholders® funds
(a) Share capital 3 15.00 15.00
(b) Reserves and surphus 4 917491 8215.44
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings 5 27490 320.38
(b) Long term Provisions 6 248.54 193.56
Current liabilities
(a) Short-term Borrowings 7 1683.88 273478
{b) Trade payables 8
- 10tal outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small
enterpnses 33279 220.55
- total «ftflslannd;ng dues of crcdnors other than micro 1931.29 693.76
enterprise and small enterprises
(h) Other current liabilities 9 337.65 45352
(d) Short-term Provisions 10 44437 340.54
14643.33 13187.54
B [ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment And Intangible Asscts
(1) Property Plant And Equipment 11 160662 161047
() Intamable Asscts 4247 3483
(b) Non-current investments 12 75.00 722.78
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 13 76.12 77.48
Current assets
() Current Investments 14 507.%6 0.00
(b) Inventories 15 4117.64 6547.90
(¢) Trade receivables 16 7034 64 2663.21
(d)y Cash and cash equivalents 17 109.52 242.713
(¢) Short-term loans and advances 18 1024.68 1262.54
(1) Other Current assets 19 48.78 25.60
TOTAL 14643.33 13187.54
€ |Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements

10 terme of our eport attached

For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accuuntants
FRN: 01 1648N

) Sunanda Kashyap
DirgidQlor Director

MIN @ 00795591 DIN : 01069655

Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor

M. No. 086293

Place: New Delhi
Date:September 16, 2024
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098
Statement of Profit And Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Significant accounting policies

Particulars NateNo For the year ended | For the year ended
| 31st March, 2024 31ist March, 2023

Revenue from operations 20 29134.83 21651.73
Other Income 21 126.68 350.41
Total Income 29261.51 22002.18
Expenses

{a) Cost of materials consumed 2 22260.71 16389.87
{b) Changes in inventories of finished goods 2 211.42 §5.53
(¢) Employee benefits expenses 24 1496.72 1364.35
{d) Finance costs 25 269.45 178.46
(¢) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 11 354.60 332.46
(1) Other expenses 26 2365.15 1773.96
Total Expenses 26958.05 20124.64
Profit before Exceptional & Extra-ordinary Items and Tax 2303.46 1877.50
Exceptional Items 29 -916.92 -637.33
Profit before Extra-ordinary ftems & Tax 1386.54 1240.17
Profit / (Loss) before tax 1386.54 1240.17
Tax Expense:

Current tax expense 425.70 331.87
Deferred tax 1.36 -25.11
Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations 959.47 933 40
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit 7 (Loss) from discontinuing operations 0.00 0.00
Tax Expenses for Discontinuing Operation 0.00 0.00
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (After Tax) 0.00 0.00
Profit / (Loss) For the Period 959.47 933.40

Earning per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each): 33

(1) Basic Rs.639.65 Rs.622.27

(2) Diluted Rs.639.65 Rs.622.27

2

1 he accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Sanjesh Jawarani &

Chartered Account

Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprictor

M. Nu. 086293

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 16, 2024

VDI ! 240BL2IR RKKATOW LI

DIN: 00795591

PorGr aanfire

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

GREENFUEL ENERGY SQFUTIONS PRIVATLE LIMITED

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

DlrecloP“""“"‘ Kashyap ;;

Director
DIN : 01069655
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LINITFD
CIN:UGOINTIIR2M0AF TCOSANIR

Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended 1141 Mar, 2024

IR InLakhe)

FpRCETTah, For the vear ended Forthe year ended
st Mareh 2024 Mt Mareh 201

A Cash Plew from Operating Actisitics
et Income 924947 27040
Adfastments
Dhepres ity 18460 112 44
favome Toy 42570 131 87
Deferyal Tan |1 2810
Nt Uash Tems Admeatments 14X ¥

647%2
Working Capital Change
Inventones PERIRIS 223185 11
Trade recvivablee A7 40 IR0 95
Shorttomm loanms amd advances PASE IS 28565
hher Carrent Aesets AN
Trade pavables 14977 JS58 2%
Other vurrent babilities 2N 22467
Shortasrm Provisions 103584 -1015.40
Incwmy Tax Paid -425.70
Loag Term Provisions 192
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 118914 232340

B. Cash Tlow feom Tovesting Activiticy

Purchase of Fived Assets 47579 -X20.583

Proceods trom sale of Fised Assets 10992 1.8

Investment m Capnal uf Founy Shares of Associate Company 0.00 0.00

Investment Others 0.00 0non

fmvesement = Autual Funds (net) 139,92 636 02

Net Cash from Tovesting Activities (B) -22598 -172.66
T ——— et

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activitics

Procerds relating to Cash Crednt 1050 90 227875
Term loan rased during the year 4549 LR
Divicdeml Paid 0.00

Divadend Tax pad 0.00

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) -1096.39

Net increase 7 {Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+H+C) <1332

Caush & Cash equivalents a5 af the beginning of the year 24293

Cash & Cash cquivaionts us at the end of the year 109.52

bt terine ot our report intached

tor Sangesh Jawarani & Co, For und on behall of Boand of Dhey

Chartered Accosntanis
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Sanpest Kumar Jawarani Sunanda Kashyap

< S
Froprictor Disector Director

R
>A] Director
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2024

1. Company Information

Greenfuel Encrgy Solutions Private Limited ("the Company" or "Greenfuel”) is engaged primarily
in the business of manufacturing and sale of High-Pressure Tubes and CNG systems, Electronic Fuel
injection systems for CNG. LPG and Batteries. The company supplies these automotive components
majorly to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for the vehicles that run on alternate gascous

fuels.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these

financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
othenwise stated.

2 a) Basis of preparation of Accounts
The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally

accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual

basis.

ave been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act. 2013. Based on
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

All assets and liabilities h
operating cycle and other criteria set

2b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues. expense.
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period.
Although these estimates arc based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions. uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

2c¢) Depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if

any. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of pg#
All other expenses on existing fixed aspels, including day-to-day repair and maintenan

Greenfuel Ener .Ld.  Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
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and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred.

s arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between

Gains or losse
arrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of

the net disposal proceeds and the ¢
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on p
determined at the rates which are equal to rate

2013,

ro rata basis on the Written Down Value method, as
s prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act,

2d) Impairment
All assets other than inventories, investments and deferred tax assct

r events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
alue exceed their recoverable amount

. are reviewed for impairment,
carrying amount may not be

whereve
are written down to the

recoverable. Assets whose carrying v
recoverable amount.

2¢) Investment
Long-term investments are carried at their acquisition cos

investment. other than a temporary decline. is recognised
Loss. Short-term investments are carried at cost or market.

t. Any decline in the value of the said
and charged to Statement of Profit and

2f) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualifving assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

2¢) Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and reward of ownership

1o the customer, which generally coincides with delivery of goods to customer in accordance with the
contract terms. Sales, as disclosed, are exclusive of sales tax, sales return and rebates.

2h) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the |
realisable value.

ower of cost, determined on the weighted average basis and net

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

2i) Foreign Currency Transactions
{'orclgn‘currcpcy transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the

nlmm.m'um. l.xcl'ml.lgc dn_”crunccs arising on settlement of transactions are recognised as income or
expense in the year in whig?they arise.
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Greenfuel En ons Pyf Ltd.

2j) Employee Benefit Costs

The Company has Defined Benefit Plans namely Gratuity, Provident Fund for employees and Other
Long Term Employee Benefits ie. Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences, the liability for
which is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year based on the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Gains and losses arising ont of actuarial valuations are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

2K) Taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net
profit or loss for the year.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and at the prevailing tax rates.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in
respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the
extent there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

21) Dividend Income

Dividend from investments is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established and
when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

2m) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis determined by the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

2n) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date
and are not discounted to their present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outtlow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

20) Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retainegds y eSSOr
are classified ps operapdi leases. Payments made under operating leases are charg é;gth&r te Ryt
S D
>
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of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or the terms of related
agreement(s), as the case may be,

2p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in h

. ish an and, demand deposits with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with origin

al maturities of three months or less.

2q) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earning considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period
and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all period presented is adjusted for events other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

For Sanjesh Jawarani
Chartered Account
FRN: 011648N

Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Greenfuel
rivate Limited
utions Pvt. Ltd.

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Director 7 W
Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani shay Kashyap Sunanda Kashyap
Proprictor Director Director
Membership No. 086293 DIN: 00795591 DIN: 01069655

Director

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U401071R2006PTCO56098

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March, 2024

Nofe 32 SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. In Lakhs)

220

As ot 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars ¥ ~
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
& () Authorised 2,50,000 25.00 2,50,000 25.00
Equity shares of Rs. 10 - each with voting rights
{b) lssued, Subscribed and Paid up 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach with voting rights
Total 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00

The Reconciliation of the Number of shares outstanding and the amount of share Capital as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 is
stated below

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars
- Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Shares Outstanding at the Beginning of the Year 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00
Add: Shares Issued During the Year - > = .
) 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.C0
Less: Shares Bought Back During the Year - - - -
Shares Outstanding at the End of the Year 1,50,000 15.00 1,50,000 15.00
List of Sharcholders holding more than 5% share capital
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Name of Shareholders Number of shares % | Number of shares Yo
Akshayv Kashvap 1,44,000 96 1.44.000 96
TOTAL 1,44,000 96 1,44,000 96
Note @

i All Equity Share Holder ranks Pari Passu with respect to Voting Rights, distribution of Dividend and Repayment of Capital.

2 No Share has been Reserved for issue under option or Commitment.

T No Calls on Shares are unpaid from Directors

4. There was no forfeiture of Shares during the year,

Greenfuel Enej

Director

Director
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promotors Holding
Current Year

Name Number Of shares % Holding Change % in Holding
Akshay Kashyap 144000 Equity Shares 96% -
Sunanda Kashyap 6000 Equity Shares 4% =

Previous Year

Number Of shares

% Holding

Change % in Holding

Name

Akshay Kashyvap 144000 Equity Shares 96% =

Sunanda Kashvap 6000 Equity Shares 4% -

A) No share has been alloted without payment being received in cash.

B) No share has been alloted by way of fully paid Bonus Share.

() No share has been bought back by the company.

Note 4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS (Rs. In Lakhs)

r 3 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance 8215.44 7282.04

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 959.47 933.40
Total 917491 821544

P

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t March, 2024

CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098

222

) (Rs. In Lokhs)

Naote §: LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Particolars As nt As at
A1st Murch, 2024] 315t March, 2023

Secured Loans @

Term Loan 29077 378.01
Vehicle Loan 105.41 41.91
1 ess: Carrent maturities of long term bonowings 121.29 9953
Totol 274.90 320.38

Nofes:

Term loan is secured by hypothecation of all existing and future current assets, movable assets and movable fixed assets, First Pari-
passu cquitable mortgage charge to be ereated on Land & Building of the compuny.

Note 6: LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars

As at
J1st March, 2024

As at
3ist March, 2023

Provision for Employee benefits

- Gratumy

206.62 156.19
- Compensated absences - Leave Encashment 4191 3737
Total 248.54 193.56

Note 7: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
[ Particulars As at As at
e 31st March, 2024]  31st March, 2023

Secured

Working Capital Limt 1562.59 2635.26
Current maturities of Long term Borrowings 121.29 99.53
Total 1683.88 2734.78

Notey @

Working Capital Limit is secured by hypothecation of all existing and future current assets, movable assets and movable fixed assets, First Pari-passu
equitable mortzage charge to be created on Land & Building of the company.

Note 8: TRADE PAYABLES

; As at As at

Particulars 31st March, 2024]  31st March, 2023

MSME 332.79 220.55
Others 1931.29 693.76
TR Total 2264.08 914.31

{

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule:

Current Year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Total
s Fhown:§ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears
year
(MSME____ 325.85 6.94 0.00 332.79
(11)Others 1931.29 1931.29

(113) Disputed ducs - MSME

(1v) Disputed dues - Others /
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Previous Year

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
Less than | T

vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
()MSME 220.55
(1)Others 693.76 :;(;55
(i11) Disputed dues ~ MSME - - . A
(i) Disputed dues - Others 2 < & : .
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2024 |March 21, 2023
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
- Pringipal 332.48 220.24

- Interest -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 [MSMED Act 2006) i .

The amount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during the
year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED -
ct 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance,
as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act 2006

L

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Comgany

Note 9: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory dues payable 105.55 39.58
Capital ereditors/Creditors for capital expenditure 5.85 1291
Payable 1o emplovee 146.36 13034
Others 279.90 270.72
[ Total 837.68 453.52

Note 10: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Particulary
Provision for employee benefits @ j
Gratuity 13.39 303
Hraiunt

. 5.23 4.73

Cutnpensated absences - Leave Locashiient 528
Other Provisions : =a he?
Provision for Income Tax =3. AEAR
44437 340.54

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt Ltd.
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
. CIN:U40 107HR2006 PTCOS,
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315t March, 2024 i
{Ry, In Lakhs)
Note 12: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Particulars Asat Asat
Tnvestment (n Matual Funds 3ist March. 2024 | 315t March, 2013
Teade Investments [\ aloed al enst unless otherwise stated) . 647,78
Investment 1n Associate 0,00 3
Other Tnvestments (Valoed 2t cost unless otherwise stated) 20, 50.00
Investment in Fyuity instriments 25,00 2500
Tots 78.00 71278
ik'v eots Mot of e od Imvostiterie
Agercpdte ameunt ot uncaetal investments 7('00 “’()”
Apgregate provnn tahmmution in vilie of tn edtasents ;)"m 000
Note LU DEFLRRED TAN ASSELLIABILITY
[1',_11 ilars March 31, 2024 [March 11, 2023
(sl Ean Assois
Impact of expeaditure charged 10 the statement of profit and loss in the current 2%.12 7348
vear but alkow el Gy lay purposes on payment basis e ¢
Others 000 0.00
Grms deferred tay assets (3) 7612 77.4%
Deterred Tas Linhility :
Liming Difference resalimg n hibility
0y okt 000 0.00
Corvn deferred 1ax labality (5) n.0n 0.00
(Nt deterred tas asser s hability ) - ja) - by 76.12 17.48
[lumni 1 cxpease reported 1n the statement of profit and loss 136 2511
Note 14: CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Asat Asat
s FarieRnG Alst March, 2024 | Vst March, 2023
fovextewn in Mt Funds S0T.X6, .00
— £07.86 0.00
it 108 eatmeris S07 .86 000
o 1m evtarents 66188 oo
u! nageidil ivesiarnis 000 0.00
oo i salie of envestownts 0.00 000
Note 15: INVENTORIES
(Valoed # lower of Cost or Net Realisable Value)
Particutirs Asal Ay at
ArSienis 315t March, 2024 | 315t Maech, 2023
Haw nutvoals sad camponcnts 325y 84 547708
Wark-an-progross 000 L]
Funishad pocds LALE 1] 10722
Total 411760 6547.90
Nute 1h: TRADE RECEIVABILFS
Particulars st LAY

Jist March, 2024

J1at March, 2023

Scoured, considered good 7020.04 2662.91
Unsevired, considered poud 14.60 0.00
Dot tul 00 0.2%
Lows Provesion for Doabtful recenables 0.00) LR
el Ll C e Total RUATEY) 2663.21
* Yrade receivabie includes:
ooy Particulars Ay at Ay al
L} 3ist March, 2024 | Y1 March, 2023
Due teom Directors 0 0
Othet officers of the Company p 9
Firm in which dircctor is # partner i o
Peovate Comnpany s which dsrceton is & menber 0 L)
[Yrade Receivables Ageing Schedule:- J
Currem Year
Qutstanding for fullowing periods from due date of payment#
Purticulary 6
L thes 6 months « | yeur 1-2 years | 2-3 years [More than 3 years Total
months é

) Undispuid | rade rocewables - considered good 6305.99 $60.02 154,03/ 2020.04

(1] Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered dountful 13.27 133 14.60

() Drsputed Trade Keceivables - considered good 000

(iv)Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubnful 0 0.00

Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
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Proviolis Yesr
Outstanding for follow .
Partlenlars ey hing | owing_perlods from due date of payment!
months G manths - | year 1-2years | 2.3 yeurs |Mare than3 yeurs Total
: Ty Undispined__Trade recelvables ~ considered gond 248545 17034 T
B, 1) Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considered doubtful 000 o‘w n.oo 2.58 000 2662.93
F (i) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good 000 200 7 0.00 000 0.00
[iv)Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful 0.00 200 T z;"; 200 000
e x 00 0.2%
Note 17: CASH AND CASI EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Asat Asat
[ 319t March, 2024 | 315t March, 2023
21 Cach In Hand 118 105
b Balance with Banks 9.9 s3x%2
) Mank Deposits with mor: than 12 menths matunty MK 1%7.85
Total] 10952 242.73
Note 18: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Particulars Asat As at
315t March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Loans & Advances to Related Parties
Secwred. Conudered Good 0.00) 833
Unsecured. Considend Good %7.60 ¥3.50
Othen
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance 1o vendor 90.07 139.96
Advance Income tax (net of provision for Income tax) 334.13 29304
Balance with Govemment authorities 199.97 706.72
Prepaid Expenscs 64.51 391
Others feamest moncy deposit) 4339 7.0
Total 1024.6% 1262.54

1.0ans und ndvances duc by directors or other officery of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or amounts due by firms or private companics respectively in
which uny director is = partner or a director or s member shall be separately stated

As at 315t March, 2024 | As at 31st March, 2023
OQutstanding i
amount of 2 ot etal { Outstanding
. loans and | % of total loans
Type of Borrower loan or  amount of loan or Z
S advance in | + and advance in the
advancein |, pature of| advanceinthe | o0y ofloan
the natury of |  matureoflvan |
loan {
loan | |
s Reluted Parties £7.60 9%) 96,43 ®%
Note 19: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at Asat
Thrtoshny 31st March, 2024 | 315t March, 2023
Sccunity Deposits 4%.7K 15.60
Total AM.78 25.60
Greenfuel Ener, Greenfuel Energy Solutions PVt d.
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NOTES TO THE FINANC

GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Note 20: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

JAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED st March, 2024

{Ry. In Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulers Sist March, 2024 | 315t March, 2023
Sale of Prosticts 2918742 21625 R6
Sale of Servives 20091 24108
Other operating revennes
- Scrap Sakes 168 252
Total 19192.01 2186943
Note 21: OTHFR INCOME
Perticalars For the vear ended Faor the year ended
i = L ol eI A1t Mareh, 24 st March, 2023
Tatenst Tcoon 2l 1729
Net parn oa sile of imvestinents oo 266 35
Orher NonOperating Income 0.00
Werpelanoous Income 1392 231
Forvign Fachangy Gain (Fachange 1flerence) 76,88 64 46
Total 126.68 350,41
Note 22: COST OF MATERIALS C¢ INSUMED
S For the year endetl For the year ended
Particulars 315t March, 2024 3ist March, 2023
Tnventories at beginning of year (Raw Materials) £477.68 303643
Add: Purchasy 20192.38 18956.87
Add: Durevt Eapenses
Clenming and Forwarding Charges 1143 5974
Insurance Charpes 10,65 1043
Sovial Weltare Suncharge 101 000
Freight & Canage 7787 5420
Job Work Processmg 9164 6X%.73
Packing Fapenees 273 & 5792
Rowalty pant on Paxtucts 30,12 0.0
Testing Charges 3508 v.i6
Sampling Expenses 25.63] 41.73
Wagss 4nd sy 42676
}.esx: Imventaries 31 the end of vear 1Raw Materials) A2sx %y 547768
Total 2343481 17244.90
Note 23: CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3t March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Imventories 3t the end of the year:
Finmbey guoods A5 81 107022
KEB81 107022
Tuventuries a1 the beginning of the year;
Finished govds 1070.22 1185 76
1070.22 1155.78
Net (Increase) / degrease 210.42 ¥5.53
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YHE PERIOD FADED 1at March, 2024

Note 24: EMPLOYEE RENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars For the year endded For the year ended
Alst March, 2024 At March, 2023
Satarus wud vapit 1151 %1 TS
€ merbuteon & pea nkort and otfar fiosds 1 e n s
Stuft Wellan Epites WS W e BTTVOUIN .cL.77.| R 1234
i A 3 e Tafal (L% 118115
38: FINANCE CUSY A A :
For the vear ended For the year ended
Particulats
st March, }HNA '_I_ﬂ_‘huﬁ,_!‘l_!'!
Interest ¥ xpesmes | 2 ) T imas iTa5
i:: TR S L i SR UM
oas :
m—!!‘ LLLLALLAA se= T For the vear enrded | For the your ended
i 03t March. 2020|315t March. 2920 |
CrTy— ST 441 9931
Tk, commmsion o LU A MG 9 0¥ s
| Rt Charges LEL) h2re
Pyt 10 Andiden frefin e 2091 et LR 1] L
Lewsl & Protuema! asomta 140 44 135 13
Pk A Prowdyite %2 1% et
Sk Prastyeeon By 1 i9 L3
A itienm ¥y 1494 5T
Flaytnety & Witer Fapenses 5847 o1 b
Ereapht Charpos Paid oy %2 203
Ptagn & Conmnr Tapones 1as 1496
Prostang ol Stationcry LE>! 1252
Bepaic, Maintenancr and AMC Oharpes
< Vo Pbelrg nw $243
Fatr £ S 49 2% s
Vet b Proneny & Mamienance o5 1
Tmsurane Fapeoes 414 L2
Tokepbuomg Papenses 65 LD
Comvpyny Fapenses 9114 72
Row Pl 1% B L
Wimrarte d harges panl 247 ax im
Nevtwty Serves FLRT] PLEN]
CSR Laxpenditre trefr mede 20A bobou ) 17 40} 3on
Trasething b apenses
< Lanwl 2URET R
« Fonopn 124 o N6 60
L hatets & Dot et 018 or
Rty & Tunes 212 128
Sirley Falancen Wortton O3 13299 Ram
St T apow. 0 VUl nis
Chher Miss Fapenses nn T M0
oy ssanae Pant 3T 82 36T A1
Faws o Salc of Faaand At T &) U P LY
Laws o sale nof wrvistonnis 203 0
Hatry Leaw Rose Can 3
RAD Lanomsiy 170 643 1X1 4y
Total pALLSE) 1771 %
Note - 26A
Details of CSR expenditure
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
8) Gross amount required 10 bie spent by the Company during the year 3650 It

) Amount spent Curing the yeer

{1} Canstruction M auisitson of any sssets
P 0 CostVeash equivalents
Yet 1o be pad in cosh

() On Purposes other than (1) sbove
Paid 0 casti/cash equavalents 3740 "
Yet 1o be pad in cash

€} Shatlall ut the und of T year Oul of e 3MOUHT relursd L De sDeM By
{1] Ihe Srwrt'al amuent 11 e, unspent amount), 10 respedt of uiter than

(4] the sHONET amowst (1. WEspenl IMuunt), Dutsua™t tu any Drgusng

A Totai of previous yars sHhotfail amounty

c) I’-u_-_u vm‘(a_n-d,' transactions

Jotad ST

* Rpasuns tur shortfal (o be provided
*E Natuie of CSK activities underiahen by the Company

PV ke p pravisien bs made with respect 19 @ bability inguried b
¢ ¥ eoter e
MavemEnts s Lhe provisleon duriag the year should be shown separately, W B s e

Mot - Jul
Fopmuat tn spditns |
Partiulars For the veur wmind | Fur the year vaded
L e $ist Marshe, 2024 )
As auditor e e e i ——— M Murgh. 202 '
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In Lakhs)

NOTE 29: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS*

For the year ended

Particnlars For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Cost of Goods Sold 1174 10 85503
Loss, Sale Realization 257.18 2172.70
Exceptional Loss 916.92 637.33

*There item were cells imported from China to be used in batteries. These cells were defective which led to recall
of batteries. which had these eells, from the customers. Recalled eells could be utilised only in re-manufacture of
Testing batteries. These batteries were sold at a price even much lower than the cost of the cells. This being one

such incident therefore considered as exceptional item.

Note 30: CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

5 For the year ended | For the year ended
Fatiiouturs 315t March, 2024 | 315t March, 2023
Raw material and Components 9881.18 10955.36
Total 9881.18 10935.30
Note 31: EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Ruyulty paid on products 193.34 593.83
Fee for technical services 35.05 9.36
Total 228.39 603.19
Note 32: Export of Goods
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Export of Goods 1107 84,45
Total 11,07 84.45

Note 33: EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

For the year ended

31st March, 2023

Net Profit after Tax attibutable to sharcholders (in Rs.) 959.47 93340
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1.50 i5p
(Nos.) 5 :
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10 10
Baise diluted carning per share (in Rs) 639.65 62227
Note: There are no dilutive instruments issued by the Company.

Note 34: Employee benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:
Particulars | _March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 |
Emplayer's contnibution to Provident fund §3e.aa 126.28

Employer's contribution to Superannuation fund |

i

b) Defined benefits plan

Gratuity 15 payable Lo all eligible employees of the Company on retirement/exit, death or permanent

disablement in terms of the provisions of the yment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd)

SA/‘M%O

Director

Ansy
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March, 2024

(i) Changes in present value of obligation
S 7Y [T

T B S
Present value of obligation as at beginning of year 162.19 50.20}
Interest cost 11.96 3.61
Current service cost / 42.89 15.35
Benefits paid i -2.76 -2.83
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligation 574 95.86
Present vNalue of obligation as at end of year i 220.01 162.19

13.39 3.93
206.62 158.26

Short term

- Long term

(i) Changes in the fair value of plan assets

e ey e A 8

#anlculars- (L amt NEETE) L MR

Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the year

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year

of Profit & loss :

{iii) Expenses recognised in the statement
Warch 31,2024 March 31,2023

Particulars
Current service cost 42.89 15.35
interest cost 11,96 3.61
i xpected return on plan assels .00 0.0C
net Actuanal ga.ns;(lmhr.:s;- recagmised 0 the year 5.74 as.86
Expenses rgcognisg_d in the _stqtgment of groﬂt & loss 60.58 114.82
{iv) Principal assumptions
Particulars ‘March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Discount rate 7.15% 7.45%
Expected rate of return on assets 0.00% 0.00%
future salary increase 15.00% 15.00%
* Employee turhover 5.00% 5.00%
60 Years 60 Years

Retirement age

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority
promotion, and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market
t v BX¥ [E , ) S
The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that
R

date, al;plfcalllu to the period over which the obkgation s to be settled. There has been significant change in
expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario - -4
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3<t MARCH 2024
Note 28: Retated Party Disclosures

Related parties with whom the Company has transacted
A, Associntes

L IRade Technologres Pavate Linited

b. Kes Managerial Personnel

Akshay Kashvup, Dhinctor

Sunanda Koshvap, Director

- Parties in which the Kex Managerial Personnel of the Company ave Interested
Inde Flect Management Technotogies LLP

T Chargeup Solutions T Ll

Gireemoore Floctromes My [l

Ark Flusd Svetem Components Pyt g

A Tadusina! Prochinets Pyt Lol

OB N

P R

OOt ety e Transaetsns and baliamy vutstanding with related partics
(Rs. In Lakhs)

[ at E Ark Fluel  |Ark
‘ﬁ - 3 IRide g g Cl'mrgcup (Greencore FEverything Systemn Industeal "
{ Natare of Tramsaction Technelogies [ Sotutions Pvi| Akshay Kashyap | Sunanda Kashyap |Electronics Pvt N Comporients ) Prodircts !
i Private Limited Ll Lt Pyt Ltd Petlad |
{Reveme From Operatyoms S%4.15 S17.6% 312 !
INak of Fived Avaey X2 5% |
ilm.-th TIavone 263 .

Lrem proen {
IConsutancy Fees Pasl 1500 12 0N
| Purchases 337.06 ’ i

e Priadagr JX6 X3 H
| Kormuneration {mcluding sneentive) 180.00] 30,00/ | |
1Chosing Balance 2y on 31st March 2024 R7.60 [EER 9 75| 1 xs] 403 66 i 138! «
Cr Dr Cr Cr Dr Cr Cr

Note 36: Contingent liabilities

particutars g | March31,2024 | MEh 3L

Ciams 2gainst the Company not acknowledged as debts* - -

Eills of excnange discounted with banks - - {

Guarantee 12(Cr -

Other mmney for wineh the Company 15 contingently liable. - -

Commitments shall be classified as:

Estmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and net provided for - Sl

untaliec Ladikty on shares and other investments partly paid - -

Other commatments (specify nature) - -

L Total el TR

Nute 37: PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Frevious Year's figures have been recasted / regrouped where considered necessary 10 conform with the current year's presentation

Fur Sanjesk Jamarani & Co,

Greenfye| Energy Solutions Pvt Ltq

“"Q::"'%

= Director

Chartered Accountants
FEN 0] 1hax

-

Sanjesh Kunr Jawarani

Sunanda Kashyap
Froprictor Director
M NG Oox629)3 DIN : 01069655
Place Sew ety

Dale Sepuenter (o, 2024
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Sanjesk Jawarani & (o

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as
Greenfuel Ahamani Battery Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Greenfuel Battery Solutions
Private Limited (Formerly known as Greenfuel Ahamani Battery Private Limited)
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs

of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its Loss for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Office: A-13, First Floor, Green Park Extn. New Delhi-110016
Phone: 011-46021429, Mobile 9810554613, sanjeshjawarani@gmail.com

“.\-\6' FCTG rebnfial Rat
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work which we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance of the Company, in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
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or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. This report does not include a statement on matters as specified by the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, since in our opinion and
according to the information and explanation given to us, the said Order is not

applicable to the company.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, the company is exempt from getting an audit opinion on internal financial
control.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

I.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

II. ~The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

III. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

IV.  a. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and

belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received
by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest

J Santions P o
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in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VI. (i Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with.

(i) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2024, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0011648N

L

CA Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor

Membership No. 086293
UDIN: 24086293BKAKDG7032

Place: New Delhi
Date: September 16, 2024
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

26

(All a in INR Th ds)
Not As at Asat
Particulars Vi 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
A | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3 500.00 500.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 -89.10 -43.11
Current liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 5 20.00 20.00
TOTAL 430.90 476.89
B |ASSETS
Non-current assets
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 6 4.66 7.72
Current Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents i 426.24 469.17
TOTAL 43090 476.89
C |signif SRS >

The an i

panying Notes fc

-]

In terms of our report attached.
For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011648N

R

CA Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor

M. No. 086293

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 16, 2024
UDIN: 24086293BKAKDG7032

for Gree \Enerd s

Au“'\O“s’e

gral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Greenfuel Battery
Solutions Private Limited

A

Akshay Kashyap
Director
DIN : 00795591

uons YV s
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Sunanda Kashyap
Director
DIN : 01069655




GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300

263

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

(All ts in INR Tho ds)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Enfticniars Notes 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue from operations 0.00 0.00
Other Income 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00 0.00
Expenses:
Other expenses 8 4293 50.83
Total Expenses 42.93 50.83
Profit / (Loss) before tax -42.93 -50.83
Tax Expense:
Current tax expense
Deferred tax 3.06 -7.72
Profit / (Loss) after tax -45.99 -43.11
Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each): 9
(1) Basic (0.92) (0.86)
(2) Diluted (0.92) (0.86)
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 011648N

R

CA Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani
Proprietor

M. No. 086293

Place: New Delhi

Date: September 16, 2024
UDIN: 24086293BKAKDG7032

y Sotutions P \d.

For Greenfuel Enerd
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Greenfuel Battery

Solutions Private Limited

Akshay Kashyap
Director
DIN : 00795591

Sunanda Kashyap

Director
DIN : 01069655

For Greenfuel Batter ¢
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known as Greenfuel Ahamani Battery Private Limited)

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300
REGISTERED OFFICE: PLOT NO 62/4, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON, HARYANA-122051

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Company Information

Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as Greenfuel Ahamani Battery
Private Limited) (‘the Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated on March 25,
2022 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the
primarily in the business of design, develop, manufacture, and assemble, buy, sell, import,
export, distribute, and deal in batteries of all kinds and descriptions for automotive and
others including Battery chargers, SMPS Chargers, Battery backup devices, Solar
Batteries, Tubular Batteries, BMS (Battery Management System) and various batteries of
all description and all components, parts, accessories, articles and fittings required for that
purpose.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements.

2 a)Basis of preparation of Accounts

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expense,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period.
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

2c¢) Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net
profit or loss for the year.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and at the prevailing tax rates.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in
respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the
extent there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using

: A\ ok Eor Creent
fue) Enery gohutions 3 |
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the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

2d) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date
and are not discounted to their present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2e) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2f) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earning considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period
and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all period presented is adjusted for events other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

For Sanjesh Jawarani & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited
FRN: 011648N

43Vf/

J&mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

CA Sanjesh Kumar Jawarani Akshay Kashyap Sunanda Kashyap
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No. 086293 DIN: 00795591 DIN: 01069655

UDIN: 24086293BKAKDG7032
Place: New Delhi
Date: 16/09/2024
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Note 3: SHARE CAPITAL

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Number of shares Rs. Number of shares Rs.

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 50.00! 500.00 50 00 500.00

Total 50,00 500.00 50.00 500.00

The Reconcillation of the Number of shares outstanding and the amount of share Capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is stated

below
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00 000 0.00
Add Shares Issued during the year 50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
Less: Shares bought back during the year
50,00 500,00 50.00 500.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Shareholders Holding more than 5% of issued & subscribed capital
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars =
No. of Shares Shareholding % No. of Shares Shareholding %
Akshay Kashyap 49.50 99.00 49.50 99.00
S da Kashyap 0.50 1.00 0.50 100
50.00 100.00 50.00 100,00
Details of Promoters' Shareholding
As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares Shareholding % No. of Shares Shareholding %
Akshay Kashyap 49.50 99.00 4950 99.00
Sunanda Kashyap 0.50 1.00 0.50 1.00
50,00 100.00 50.00 100.00
Note:

For the period of five years, immediately preceeding the date at which the balance sheet is prepared:
(a) No shares have been alloted without payment being received in cash.
(b) No shares have been alloted by way of fully paid Bonus Shares.

(c) No shares have been bought back by the company.

Note 4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

i 315t M':::, 2024 31st M’:Sr:’:. 2023
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance -43.11 0.00
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year -4599 -4311

0.00 0.00
Closing Balance -89.10 -43.11
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Note 5: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at Anat
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Expenses Payable 20.00 20.00
Total 20.00 20.00
Note 6: DEFERRED TAX
3 As at As at
FarGrulany 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Deferred Tax Asset 4.66 7.72
Total 4.66 7.72
Note 7: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars el AR AL
) 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Balances with banks 426.24 469.17
Total 426.24 469.17
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Note 8: OTHER EXPENSES

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Audit Fee 20.00 20.00
Professional Charges 15.40
Preliminary Expense 0.00 30.83
Govt Fee 7.53 0.00
Total 42.93 50.83
Note 9: EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
th Profit after Tax attibutable to shareholders 4599 4311
(inRs.)
Weighted average number of equity shares "
outstanding during the year (Nos.) 290 0.0
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per equity share-Basic (in Rs.) (0.92) (0.86)
Earnings per equity share- Diluted (in Rs) (0.92) (0.86)

>Ny,
Ve
e (NEVI DELYH ) «
&/

: \d.
ions PV
\ Enery SO

of Greenfu®

authorised signat™y

.

268




269

GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Note 10: In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) -18 Related Party Disclosures’, the names of
the related parties where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions/year
end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

A. Name of related parties and nature of relationship

I Key g t p 1 and their relatives:

S.No. |Nature of Relationship Names of related parties |
1 |Director Akshay Kashyap
2 |Director Sunanda Kashyap
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

(Al sin INR Th ds)
NOTE 11: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION*
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Statutory Audit Fee 20.00 20.00
Other Matters 15.40 25.00
Total 35.40 45.00
* Excluding Goods & Service Tax
Note 12: CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS
v For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Total 0.00 0.00]
Note 13: EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Total 0.00 0.00
Note 14: EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
Total 0.00 0.00
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 30TH SEPT'24
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars '::’:e 30th Sept'24 | 31st March'24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES g
Shareholders’ funds (Bal. Fig.) 3,4 10691.18 9154.54
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserves and surplus
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term Borrowings 5 479.22 274.90
(b) Long-term Provisions 6 248.54 248.54
Current liabilities
(a) Trade payables (Net) 8 2204.74 2264.08
(b) Other current liabilities 9 2443.23 537.65
(c) Short-term Borrowings 7 151.02 1683.88
(d) Short-term Provisions 10 744 .44 444,37
(e) CNG
TOTAL 16962.38 14607.95
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment And Intangible Assets 11 1642.94 1649.09
(i) Property Plant And Equipment
(ii) Intangible Assets
(b) Non-cutrent investments 12 39.63 39.63
(¢) Deferred tax assets (net) 13 76.12 76.12
Current assets
(a) Current Investments 14 220.86 507.86
(b) Inventories 15 447422 4117.64
(c) Trade receivables 16 7258.21 7034.64
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 17 1064.68 109.52
(e) Short-term loans and advances 18 2129.61 1024.68
(f) Other Current assets 19 56.12 48.78
TOTAL 16962.38 14607.95

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PXIVATE LIMITED
For Greenfuel Eneggy Soiftions#vt. Ltd.

Akshay Kashyap Sunanda Kashyap
Director Director

DIN : 00795591 DIN : 01069655
Place: New Delhi

Date:

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Lid.

Director
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

{Rs, In Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. 30th Sept'24 3ist March'24
Revenue from operations 20 20325.29 29174.31
Other Income 21 153.97 126.68
Total Income 20479.26 29300.99
Expenscs
() Cost of materials consumed 22 15675.89 20360.93
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods 23 -400.14 2430.26
(c) Employee benefits expenses 24 810.64 1496.72
(d) Finance custs 25 118.72 269.45
() Depreciation and amortisation expenses 170.24 354.60
(1) Other expenscs 26 V4806 2365.15
Total Expenses 17353.40 27277.12
Profit before xceptional & Extra-ordinary liems and T'ax 3125.86 2023.87
Exceptional Items 27 -270.67 -637.33
Profit before Extra-otdinary Items & Tax 2855.20 1386.54
Profit / (Loss) before tax 2855.20 1386.54
Tax Expense:
Current tax expense 718.60 425.70
Deferred tax 1.36
Profit / (Loss) from continuing operations 2136.60 959.47
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations 0.00 0.00
Tax Expenses for Discontinuing Operation 0.00 0.00
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (After Tax) 0.00 0.00
Profit / (Loss) For the Period 2136.60 959.47
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of z )
For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Lid.
/ St n-g

Alsh ’x/":.ya,, Director
Director

DIN : 00795591
Place: New Delhi

Date:

Director

Sunanda Kashyap
Director

DIN: 01069655

Ronesty
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U40107HR2006PTC056098
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPT 30,2024

1. Company Information

Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited ("the Company" or "Greenfuel") is engaged primarily
in the business of manufacturing and sale of High-Pressure Tubes and CNG systems, Electronic Fuel
injection systems for CNG, LPG and Batterics. The company supplies these automotive components
majorly to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for the vehicles that run on alternate gaseous
fuels.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2 a) Basis of preparation of Accounts

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements
to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule IT1 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conform ity with Indian GAAP requires management to make
Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expense, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period. Although these
estimates are based upon management’s best kno wledge of current events and actions, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

2¢) Depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All
other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditurc and
cost of replacing parts, are cliarged to the statement of profit and loss tor the period during which such
expenses are mcurred.‘ utions Pvt. Ltd

4
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on pro rata basis on the Written Down Value method, as

determined at the rates which are equal to rates prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act,
2013.

2d) Impairment

All assets other than inventories, investments and deferred tax asset, are reviewed for impairment,
wherever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Assels whose carrying value exceed their recoverable amount are written down to the rccoverable
amount.

2¢) Investment

Long-term investments are carried at their acquisition cost. Any decline in the value of the said
investment, other than a temporary decline, is recognised and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Short-term investments are carried at cost or market.

2f) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

2g) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of all significant risks and reward of ownership
to the customer, which generally coincides with delivery of goods to customer in accordance with the
contract terms. Sales, as disclosed, are exclusive of sales tax, sales return and rebates.

2h) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, determined on the weighted average basis and net realisable
value.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

2i) Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions are recognised as income or
expense in the year in which they arise,

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd
//Jé;\xf'md'éx A/’}V
// *  Director Director
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2j) Employee Benefit Costs

The Company has Defined Benefit Plans namely Gratuity, Provident Fund for employees and Other
Long Term Employee Benefits i.e. Leave Encashment / Compensated Absences, the liability for which
is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of the year based on the Projected Unit
Credit Method. Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

2k) Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determ ining the net
profit or loss for the year.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income Tax Act and at the prevailing tax rates.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect
of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent there
is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred (ax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Ralance Sheet date. At each
Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

21) Dividend Income
Dividend from investments is recognised when the right to receive the paymenl is cstablished and when
no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

2m) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis determined by the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable and where no significant uncertainty as to measurahility or collectability exists.

2n) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions arc rccognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obli gation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date
and are not discounted to their present valuc,

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

20) Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss on a straight-line Msis over the period of the lease or the terms of related
agreement(s), as the case may

| Y

For Greenfugl Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

/ MJK) 4
/ D‘irector Director
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2p) Cash and Cash Equivalents
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2q) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earning considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period
and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all period presented is adjusted for events other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

(¥ 1,6 / /éﬁ,fg

Director

For Greenfuel Ener olytfons Pvt. Ltd.

Director

Akshay Kashyap Sunanda Kashyap
Director Director
DIN: 00795591 DIN: 01069655

Place: New Delhi
Date:

"
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107THR2006PTC056098
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30th SEPT, 2024

Note 3: SHARE CAPITAL (Rs. In Lakhs)
4 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Eaciicren Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(a) Authorised 2,50,000 25.00 2,50,000 25.00
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each with voting rights
(b) Jssued, Subscribed and Paid up 1,45,844 14.58 1,50,000 15.00
Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights
Total 1,45,844 14,58 1,50,000 15.00
The Number of shares onlstuoding and the amount of Share Capital as at Sept 30,2024 and March 31, 2024 is stated below
30th Scpt'24 31st March'24
Particutars m
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Shares Outstanding at the Beginning of the Year 1,45,844 14.58 1,50,000 15.00
Add: Shares Issued During the Year - - - .
1,45,844 14.58 1,50,000 15.00
Less: Shares Bought Back During the Year - - - .
Shares Outstanding at the End of the Year| 1,45844 14.58 1,50,000 1500
List of Sharcholders holding more than 5% share capital
30th Sept'24 31st March'24 |
Nante of Shareholders Number of shares % | Number of shares %
Akshay Kashyap 1,45,843 100 1,44,000 96
TOTAL 1,45,843 100 1,44,000 96
Note :

1. All Equity Share Holder ranks Pari Passu with respect to Voting Rights, distribution of Dividend and Repayment of Capital

2. No Share has been Reserved for issue under option o!
3. No Calls on Shares are unpaid from Directors.
4. There was no forfeiture of Shares during the year.

Promotors Holding

r Commitment.

Current Period

Name Number Of shares % Holding
Akshay Kashyap 145843 Equity Shares 100%
Sunanda Kashyap 1 Equity Share 0%
Previous Year

Namg Number Of shases % Holding
Akshay Kashyap 144000 Equity Shares 96%
Sunanda Kashyap 6000 Equity Shares 4%

A) No share has been alloted without payment being reoeived in cash.

B) No share has been alloted by way of fully paid Bonu

Note 4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

s Share,

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 30th Sept'l‘ 3ist March'24

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening balance 9139.54 8180.21

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year 2136.60 959.32

Less: Premium on Buy back of shares paid 599.54 -
Total 10676.60 9139.54

Qe

For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd

Director

Ay
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107HR2006PTCO056098
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPT, 202

Note 5: LONG TERM BORROWINGS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Secured Loans @
Term Loan 390.56 290.77
Vehicle Loan 88.67 105.41
121.29
L.ess : Current maturities of 1T Borrowings 121.88
Total 479.22 274.90
Notes:

Term loan is secured by hypothecation of all existing and future current asscts, movable assets and
movable fixed assets. First Pari-passu equitable mortgage charge to be created on Land & Building

of the company.
Note 6: LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Provision for Employee henefits
Gratuity 206.62 206.62
Leave Encashment 41.91 = 4191
Total 24854] 24854

Note 7: SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Secured
Working Capital Limit 151.02 1562 59
Current maturities of LT Borrowings 121.88 o 121.29
Total 151.02 1683.88
Notes :

Working Capital Limit is secured by hypothecation of all existing and future current assets, movable
assets and movable fixed ussets, First Parl-passu equitable mortgage charge to be created on Land &

Building of the company.
Note 8: TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars 30th Sept'24 | 3151 March'24
Trade Payables 2204.74 2264.08
Total 2204.74 2264.08

Note 9: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars 30th Sept'24|  31st March'24
Statutory dues payablo 505.66 105.55
Payable to employec 1314.23 146.36
Others 623.34 285.75
Total 2443.23 537.65

Note 10: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars 30th Sept'24| 315t March'24 |
Provision for employee benefits :
Gratlty 27.01 13139
Compensated absences - Leave Encashment -1.16 528
Other Provisions :
Provision for Income Tax _# 718.60 425.70
Pl g Total 744.44 444.37

{, Y_For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt, Ltd.

Director

Qe St

For@fﬁenfuel Energy Soluti
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD. ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

Note 12: NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(R, In Lakhy)

Particulars 30th Sept'24 | 31st March'24
Trade Investments (Valued at cost unless otherwise stated)
Investment in Associate 50.00 50.00
Add: Share of Associate's Profit/(Loss) -35.37 -35.37
Other Investments (Valued at cost unless otherwise stated)
Investment in Equity instruments 25.00 25.00
Total 39.63 39.63
Note 13: DEFERRED TAX ASSET/LIABILITY i
Particulars 3 30th Sept'24| 31st March'24
Deferred Tax Assets 76.12 76.12
Total 76.12 76.12
Note 14: CURRENT INVESTMENTS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 30th Sept'24] 31st March'24
Investment in Mutual Funds 220.86 507.86
Total 220.86 507.86
Note 15: INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower ol Cost or Net Realisable Valte)
Particulars 30th Sept'24] 31st March'24
Raw materials and components 3223.03 3258.84
Work-in-progress 0.00 0.00
Finished goods 1251.19 858.81
Total 4474.22 4117.64
Note 16: TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars 30th Sept'24| 31st March'24
Trade Receivables 7258.21 7034.64
Less: Provision for Doubtful receivables 0.00 0.00
2 Total 725821 7034.64
Note 17: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars 30th Sept'24| 31st March'24
a) Cash In Hand 0.74 1.18
b) Balance with Banks 1002.25 39.96
) Bank Deposits with more than 12 months matirrity 61.70 68.38
Total 1064.68 109.52
Note 18: SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Pakisikari 30th Sept'24| 31st March'24
Loans & Advances to Related Parties 87.41 87.60
Others
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance Income tax 1113.95 334.13
Balance with Government authorities 44.47 399.97
Others 883.77 202.97
Total 2129.61 1024.65
Note 19: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
. T
i 30th Sopt'uﬂ 31st March'24
Security Deposits 56.12 48.78]
Total 56.12 48.78

Raners.
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098

23 K

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

Note 20: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

{Rs. In Lakhs)

For er‘e‘nfuel Ener

Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Sale of Products 20190.06 29187.42
Sale of Services 21291 200.91
Other operating revenues
Scrap Sales 3.17 _3.68
Total 20406.15 29392.01
Note 21: OTHER INCOME
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24 |
Interest Income 28.14 36.21
Net gain on sale of investments 113.49 0.00
Other Non-Operating Income
Miscellaneous Income 4.26 13.92
Foreign Exchange Gain (Exchange Difference) 8.08 76.55
Total 153.97| 126.68
Note 22: COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particnlars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Purchascs 15398.35 20192.38
Add: Direct Kxpenses
Clearing and Forwarding Charges -5.77 11.43
Insurance Charges 5.83 10.65
Social Welfare Surcharge 0.00 1.01
Freight & Cartage 82.09 77.87
Job Work Processing 29.82 93.64
Packing Expenses 8.91 273.59
Royalty paid on Products 148.39 30.12
Testing Charges 2245 35.05
Sampling Expenses 26.10 25.63
Wages 311.25 464.59
Total 16027.41 21215.96
Note 23: CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24 |
Inventories at the end of the year 4517.78 4117.64
Inventories at the beginning of the year 4117.64 6547.90
Net (inerease) / decrease -400.14 2430.26
Note 24: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Salaries and wages : 765.73 1351.91
Contribution to provident and other funds 18.141 44,02
Staff Welfare Expenses 5677\  100.78
Total 840.64 1496.72]
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For Greenfuel Energy Solutions Pvt. Ltd.

Director
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN:U40107HR2006PTC056098

23+

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

Note 25: FINANCE COST
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24 |
Interest Expenses 118.72 269.45
Total 118.72 269.45
Note 26: OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars 30th Sept'24 31st March'24
Bank Charges 1.75 941
Bank commission on LC & BG 1.98 9.08
Remittance Charges 2.39 0.89
Legal & Professional Expenses 94.31 147.26
Books & Periodicals 8.24 26,22
Sale Promotion Expenscs 29.69 110.19
Advertisement Expenses 2.32 11.96
Electricity & Water Expenses 36.30 56.47
Freight Charges Paid 213.37 300.52
Postage & Courier Expenscs 2.87 3.45
Printing and Stationery 2.77 8.62
Repair, Maintenance and AMC Charges
- For Building 44.76 42.99
+ For Others 36.34 49.88
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 1.49 8.69
Insurance Expenses 1.64 4.14
Telephone Expenses 5.14 9.66
Conveyance Expenses 1.90 9.11
Rent Paid 77.67 106.60
Warranty Charges paid 1515 257.38
Security Services 14.75 26.41
CSR Expenditure - 37.40
Travelling Expenses
- Local 108.98 278.17
- Foreign 49.05 121.60
Charity & Donation 0.02 0.35
Rafes & Taxes . 0.06 2.32
Sundry Balances Written Off - 132.99
Short/Excess 0.00 0.00
Other Misc. Expenses 18.63 33.71
Commission Paid 4.55 371.62
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset 1.56 7.56
Battery Lease Rent 50.74 8.46
Loss on sale of investments 0.00 2.04
R&D Expenses 130.66 170.00
Total 948.06 2365.15
For Grenn!u/el’Energy Solutlons Pvt. Lig.

Director
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GREENFUEL ENERGY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

232 M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

NOTE 27: EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS*

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Greenfuel 31st March'24
Cost of Goods Sold 351.52 855.03
Less: Sale/Realization 80.85 217.70
Exceptional Loss 270.67 637.33

*There item were cells imported from China to be used in batteries. These cells were defective which led to
recall of batteries, which had these cells, from the customers. Recalled cells could be utilised only in re-
manufacture of Testing batteries. These batteries were sold at a price even much lower than the cost of the
cells. This being one such incident therefore considered as exceptional item.
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30TH SEPT, 2024

(Al amounts in INR Thousands)

Notos As at Asg at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 ___31st March, 2024
A | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3 500.00 500.00
(b) Reserves and surplus 4 -89.10 -89.10
Current liabilities
Other Current Liabilitics 5 20.00 20.00
TOTAL 430,90 430.90
B |ASSETS
Non-current assets
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 6 4.66 4.66
C'urrent Assets L
Cash and Cash equivalents 7 426.24 426.2
TOTAL 430.90 430.90
C  |Significant accounting policies 2

S

SR T e Sl e

RN T R D, S IR

The accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited

Akshaan
Director

DIN : 00795591

Place: New Delhi
Date:

UDIN:

bl

yayron

Sunanda Kashyap
Director
DIN : 01069655
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300

212 6

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30TH SEPT 2024

{All amounts in INR Thonsandf)

For the quarter ended For the year ended
Pasticiues Nots 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue from operations 0.00 0.00
Other Income 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue 0.00 0.0

Fxpenses:

Other expenses 8 0.00 42.93
Total Expenses 0.00 42_ 23
Profit / (Loss) before tax 0.00 -42.93
‘Tax Fxpense:

Current tax expense

Deferred tax 0.00 3.06
Profit / (Loss) after tax 0.00 -45.99
Earnings per equity share (Face Value of Rs. 10 each): 9

(1) Basic 0.92)
(2) Diluted - (0.92)
Significant accounting policics 2

The accompanying Notes forming an integral part of these financial statements
For and on behalf of Board o’t; Directors of Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited
by

Akshay lychy/np/

Director

DIN ¢ 00795591
Place: New Delhi
Date:

UDIN:

Qe
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Sunanda Kashyap
Director
DIN : 01069655
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U31109HR2022PTC102300
REGISTERED OFFICE: PLOT NO 62/4, IMT MANESAR, GURGAON, HARYANA-122051

Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended Sept 30, 2024

1. Company Information

Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as Greenfuel Ahamani Battery
Private Limited) (‘the Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated on March 25,
2022 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the
primarily in the business of design, develop, manufacture, and assemble, buy, sell, import,
export, distribute, and deal in batteries of all kinds and descriptions for automotive and
others including Battery chargers, SMPS Chargers, Battery backup devices, Solar
Batteties, Tubular Batteries, BMS (Battery Management System) and various batteries of
all description and all components, parts, accessories, articles and fittings required for that
purpose.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements.

2 a)Basis of preparation uf Accounts

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133
of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
basis.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purposc of current and non-current classification of assels and liabilities.

2b) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expense,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period.
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

2¢) Taxes
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net
profit or loss for the year.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and at the prevailing tax rates.

Deferred tax is recognised for all timing differences, subject to the consideration of prudence in
respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the
extent there is a reasonable cergainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
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the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet datc.
At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

2d) Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date
and are not discounted to their present value.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence ol one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount canhot be made.

2¢) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2f) Earnings pcr Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Larning considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period
and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all period presented is adjusted fur events other than the
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
sharc, the net profit or losy [ur the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Greenfucl Battery Selutions Private Limited

o ﬁ-/ /‘/ Pl ? 4
s Z :)/? o w
Ll Rowct £y
M
Aksigy Kashyap Sunanda Kashyap
Director Dircctor
DIN: 00795591 DIN: 01069655
UDIN:
Place: New Delhi
Date:
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

233 £

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Note 3: SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Number of shares Rs. Number of shares Rs.
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 50.00 500.00 50.00 500 00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 cach with voting rights 50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
Total 50.00 500 00 50.00 500 00
The Reconcillation of the Number of shares outstanding and the amount of share Capital as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is stated
below
As at As at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.00 0.00 00n 0.00
Add® Shares 1saned during the year 50.00 500.00 50 00 500.00
Less: Shares bought back during the year
50.00 500.00 50.00 500.00
|Shares outstanding at the end of the year
Shareholders Holding more than 5% of issued & subseribed capits
As at As at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
No. of Shares Shareholding % No. of Shares Sharcholding %%
Akshay Kashyap 49.50 99.00 49 50 99.00
Sunanda Kashyap 0.50 1.00 0.50 1.00
50.00 100.00 50.00 100.00
Details of Promoters' Shareholding
As at As at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
No. of Shares Sharcholding % No. of Shares Shareholding %
Akshay Kashyap 49.50 99.00 49,50, 99 00
Sunanda Kashyap 0.50 1.00 0.50/ 1.00
50.00 100.00 50.00 100,00
Note:

For the period of five years, immediately preceeding the date at which the balance sheet is prepared:
(a) No shares have been alloted without paymenl being received in cash.
(b) No shares have been alloted by way of fully paid Bonus Shares.
(c) No shares have been bought back by the company.

Note 4: RESERVES AND SURPLUS

As at As at
Particulars 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance -89.10 43 11
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 0.00 -45.99
Closing Ralance -89.10 -89.10

o
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Note 5: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Particulars ks Asat
30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Expenses Payable 20.00 20.00§
Total 20.00 20.00
Note 6: DEFERRED TAX
As at Ag at
) 3 v,
karteniar 30th Sept, 2024 315t March, 2024 |
Deferred Tax Asset 4.66 4.66
Total 4.66 4.66
Note 7: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
o As at As at
Farticuls 30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Balances with banks 426.24 426.24
Cash in hand 0.00 0.00
Total 426.24 426.24

Mot Loy
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

Note 8: OTHER EXPENSES (All amounts in INR Thousands)
svitenline For the quarter ended For the year ended
30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024

Audit Fee 0.00 20.00
Professional Charges 0.00 15.40
Preliminary Expense 0.00 0.00
Govt Fee 0.00 7.53

Total 0.00 42.93
Note 9: EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE

Particulars " For the quarter ended For the year ended
30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024

b.)el Profit after Tax attibutable to shareholders 0.00 45.99
(in Rs.)
Welghtefj avgm.ge number of equity shares 50.00 50.00
outstanding during the year (Nos.)
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per equity share-Basic (in Rs.) - (0.92)
Earnings per equity share- Diluted (in Rs.) - (0.92)

kwen/‘b
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Note 10: In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) -18 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, the names of the related parties where control exists/able to exercise significant influence

along with the aggregate transactions/year end balances with them as identified and certified by the
management are given below:

A. Name of related parties and nature of relationship

L Key management personnel and their relatives:

8.No. |Nature of Relationship Names of related parties =~~~ 1
1 |Director Akshay Kashyap
2 |Director Sunanda Kashyap

& Lk A7
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024

NOTE 11: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION*

243

(All amounts in INR Thousands)

Particulars

For the quarter ended

For the year ended

30th Sept, 2024 31st March, 2024
Statutory Audit Fee 0.00 20.00
Other Matters 15.40 15.40
Total 15.40 35.40

* Excluding Goods & Service Tax

Note 12: CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

Particulars

For the quarter ended
30th Sept, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

Total

0.00

0.00

Note 13: EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Particulars

For the quarter ended
30th Sept, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

Total

0.00

0.00

Note 14: EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Particulars

For the quarter ended
30th Sept, 2024

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

Total

0.00

-
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GREENFUEL BATTERY SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30TH SEPT, 2024
Note 16: Additional Regulatory Information

(a) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(b) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory limits.
(c) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year
(d) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, that the
Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
(¢) The Company has not recevied any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign cntities (funding party) with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise
that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company Funding Party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(f) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
(g) The Company does not have any benami property where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property
(h) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority
(i) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Companies Act, 2013,
(j) No Revaluation of Property Plant & Equipments has been made during the Quarter 1 & 2 of the Financial Year 2024-2025.
(k) The Company is not covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013

For and on behalf of B

« of Dircctors of Greenfuel Ahamani Battery Private Limited

s s

Sunanda Kashyap
Director
DIN : 01069655

DIV : 00795591
Place: New Delhi
Date;

UDIN:

Yol




